Wolftank-Adisa (WAH GY) | Utilities/Renewables

September 05, 2022

Capital Markets

Solutions for the energy transformation process

Wolftank is a specialist in environmental protection services such as tank and soil remediation. At the same time, Wolftank plans and builds refueling stations for LNG and hydrogen. The market opportunities for Wolftank's environmental and industrial coating services are attractive. Conventional tanks and refueling stations are mostly aging but are expected to operate for quite some time. This will probably lead to future demand for maintenance, repair, refurbishment and eventually dismantling services. At the same time, the opportunities in the hydrogen market are appealing. According to IEA estimates, demand for hydrogen is expected to rise to over 500 Mt p.a. by 2050. These quantities will have to be distributed to a wide variety of applications in the future. Hydrogen with its low volumetric energy density differs significantly from most other fuels which has important consequences for storage, transport and application. With its rich knowhow in the fields of process software, compression technology or temperature control, Wolftank is able to offer various solutions for the development of a hydrogen distribution infrastructure.

- We expect sales to increase by an average of 13% p.a. and EBIT-DA by an average of 20% between 2023 and 2025.
- The Environmental Services peers trade at 7x EV/EBITDA 2024e on average, the Engineering peers at 8.5x and the Renewables peers at 11.7x. The Hydrogen peers are not yet foreseeably profitable in the next few years. Therefore, a sales multiple is usually used here. They are currently trading at 4.5x EV/sales 2024e. Wolftank is trading at 9.2x EV/EBITDA 2024e and at 0.8x EV/ sales 2024e.

| Fundamentals (in EUR m) ¹ | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022e | 2023e | 2024e |
|--------------------------------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Sales | 52 | 35 | 45 | 70 | 82 | 95 |
| EBITDA | 5 | 0 | 2 | 5 | 7 | 8 |
| EBIT | 1 | -2 | -1 | 2 | 4 | 6 |
| EPS adj. (EUR) | -0.03 | -1.84 | -0.67 | 0.10 | 0.40 | 0.69 |
| DPS (EUR) | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 |
| BVPS (EUR) | 6.80 | 4.84 | 3.17 | 3.17 | 3.28 | 3.62 |
| Net Debt incl. Provisions | 14 | 20 | 11 | 14 | 9 | 3 |
| Ratios ¹ | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022e | 2023e | 2024e |
| EV/EBITDA | 3.0 | 108.4 | 60.4 | 16.5 | 12.3 | 9.1 |
| EV/EBIT | 10.4 | -16.9 | -67.6 | 37.2 | 19.9 | 12.9 |
| P/E adj. | n.a. | -4.8 | -26.8 | 163.7 | 41.2 | 23.7 |
| Dividend yield (%) | n.a. | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 | 0.0 |
| EBITDA margin (%) | 8.9 | 0.8 | 3.4 | 7.4 | 7.9 | 8.6 |
| EBIT margin (%) | 2.5 | -5.1 | -3.0 | 3.3 | 4.9 | 6.1 |
| Net debt/EBITDA | 3.0 | 70.6 | 7.6 | 2.7 | 1.4 | 0.4 |
| PBV | 0.0 | 1.8 | 5.7 | 5.2 | 5.0 | 4.5 |

¹Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research

| Buy | initiation of coverage |
|--------------|------------------------|
| Price* | EUR 16.35 |
| Price target | EUR 25.80 |

* XETRA trading price at the close of the previous day unless stated otherwise in the Disclosures

| Market Cap (EUR m) ¹ | 72 |
|---------------------------------------|------|
| Enterprise Value (EUR m) ¹ | 86 |
| Free Float (%) ¹ | 49.0 |





| Performance (in %) ¹ | 1m | 3m | 12m |
|---------------------------------|------|------|------|
| Share | -2.1 | -8.9 | 23.9 |
| Rel. to SDAX | 6.9 | 6.0 | 79.4 |

Sponsored Research



Author: Guido Hoymann

Financial Analyst Equities

+49 69 2104-398 GHoymann@metzler.com

Contents

| Key Data | | 3 |
|----------------------------|--|----|
| Executive Summary | Growth opportunities in the 'traditional' business as well as in a hydrogen economy | 4 |
| | SWOT analysis | 6 |
| Investment Case | A well rounded product range | 7 |
| | Hydrogen | 9 |
| | LNG | 20 |
| | Biogas | 23 |
| | Environmental Services | 24 |
| | Industrial Coatings | 27 |
| | Financials | 29 |
| | Company history, management and shareholder structure | 32 |
| Valuation | Wolftank's 'traditional' tank activities already justify large parts of the cur- rent valuation; opportunities from hydrogen activities do not yet seem ade- quately reflected | 34 |
| Balance sheet | | 37 |
| Profit & loss account | | 38 |
| Cash flow/ratios/valuation | | 39 |
| Disclosures | | 40 |

Key Data

Company profile

CEO: Dr. Peter Werth CFO: Christian Pukljak COO: Dr. Matteo Ciarapica Innsbruck The core competencies of the Wolftank Group include engineering, construction and operating services related to refueling facilities and the storage and transport of fuels.

Major shareholders

Management Board (13%), Dr. A. v. Aufschnaiter (7%), Eiffel Investment Group SA (8%), Paladin Asset Management (8%), MuM Industriebeteiligungen (15%)

Key figures

| P&L (in EUR m) | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
|-------------------------------------|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Sales | 52 | 16.3 | 35 | -32.4 | 45 | 27.4 | 70 | 57.1 | 82 | 17.7 | 95 | 14.9 |
| EBITDA | 5 | 36.4 | 0 | -93.9 | 2 | 436.3 | 5 | 246.1 | 7 | 26.0 | 8 | 24.9 |
| EBITDA margin (%) | 8.9 | 17.2 | 0.8 | -91.0 | 3.4 | 320.8 | 7.4 | 120.3 | 7.9 | 7.0 | 8.6 | 8.7 |
| EBIT | 1 | -20.5 | -2 | -236.5 | -1 | 25.4 | 2 | 271.5 | 4 | 76.1 | 6 | 42.7 |
| EBIT margin (%) | 2.5 | -31.6 | -5.1 | -302.0 | -3.0 | 41.5 | 3.3 | 209.2 | 4.9 | 49.6 | 6.1 | 24.2 |
| Financial result | -1 | -3.0 | -1 | -30.9 | -1 | -35.8 | -1 | 7.9 | -1 | 0.0 | -1 | 0.0 |
| EBT | 1 | -41.1 | -3 | -648.9 | -3 | 2.9 | 1 | 135.8 | 3 | 176.8 | 4 | 63.1 |
| Taxes | 0 | -3.4 | -1 | -218.5 | 0 | 127.7 | 0 | 49.8 | 1 | 205.9 | 1 | 66.5 |
| Tax rate (%) | 83.5 | n.a. | 18.0 | n.a. | -5.1 | n.a. | 21.5 | n.a. | 23.7 | n.a. | 24.2 | n.a. |
| Net income | 0 | -80.2 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -24.5 | 1 | 121.9 | 2 | 205.9 | 3 | 66.5 |
| Minority interests | 0 | 157.8 | -0 | -191.5 | 0 | 142.4 | 0 | 308.2 | 0 | 5.0 | 0 | 4.8 |
| Net Income after minorities | -0 | -106.3 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -33.3 | 0 | 114.8 | 2 | 297.7 | 3 | 74.0 |
| Number of shares outstanding (m) | 1 | 0.0 | 1 | 2.7 | 4 | 264.3 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 |
| EPS adj. (EUR) | -0.03 | -106.3 | -1.84 | n.m. | -0.67 | 63.4 | 0.10 | 114.8 | 0.40 | 297.7 | 0.69 | 74.0 |
| DPS (EUR) | 0.00 | n.a. | 0.00 | n.a. | 0.00 | n.a. | 0.00 | n.a. | 0.00 | n.a. | 0.00 | n.a. |
| Dividend yield (%) | n.a. | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. |
| Cash Flow (in EUR m) | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
| Gross Cash Flow | -1 | -157.9 | -0 | 94.7 | 5 | n.m. | 4 | -26.7 | 4 | 25.2 | 6 | 26.4 |
| Increase in working capital | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 5 | n.a. | -2 | n.a. | -2 | n.a. |
| Capital expenditures | 2 | 105.9 | 1 | -24.3 | 2 | 64.3 | 1 | -47.8 | 2 | 25.0 | 2 | 13.3 |
| D+A/Capex (%) | 177.5 | n.a. | 148.5 | n.a. | 123.7 | n.a. | 241.7 | n.a. | 166.7 | n.a. | 141.2 | n.a. |
| Free cash flow (Metzler definition) | -3 | -379.0 | -1 | 51.2 | 3 | 277.7 | -3 | -200.7 | 5 | 291.0 | 6 | 19.8 |
| Free cash flow yield (%) | n.a. | n.a. | -13.8 | n.a. | 3.3 | n.a. | -3.6 | n.a. | 7.0 | n.a. | 8.3 | n.a. |
| Dividend paid | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. |
| Free cash flow (post dividend) | 2 | -32.1 | -5 | -382.4 | 11 | 321.9 | -3 | -124.7 | 5 | 291.0 | 6 | 19.8 |
| Balance sheet (in EUR m) | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
| Assets | 44 | 7.8 | 51 | 15.2 | 62 | 21.1 | 66 | 6.5 | 64 | -3.5 | 61 | -3.9 |
| Goodwill | 3 | 0.4 | 5 | 76.6 | 7 | 31.2 | 8 | 13.0 | 8 | 6.3 | 8 | 0.0 |
| Shareholders' equity | 8 | 164.1 | 8 | -7.7 | 16 | 115.2 | 16 | 0.5 | 17 | 3.1 | 18 | 8.9 |
| Equity/total assets (%) | 18.4 | n.a. | 14.7 | n.a. | 26.2 | n.a. | 24.7 | n.a. | 26.4 | n.a. | 30.0 | n.a. |
| Net Debt incl. Provisions | 14 | -4.0 | 20 | 43.7 | 11 | -42.4 | 14 | 22.9 | 9 | -35.6 | 3 | -66.3 |
| thereof pension provisions | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. |
| Gearing (%) | 168.8 | n.a. | 262.9 | n.a. | 70.4 | n.a. | 86.1 | n.a. | 53.8 | n.a. | 16.7 | n.a. |
| Net debt/EBITDA | 3.0 | n.a. | 70.6 | n.a. | 7.6 | n.a. | 2.7 | n.a. | 1.4 | n.a. | 0.4 | n.a. |

Structure

Sales by segments 2021

| Hydrogen 6% | | |
|------------------------|------|-----|
| LNG | | |
| | 21% | |
| Biogas 0% | | |
| Environmental Services | | |
| | | 45% |
| Industrial Coatings | 28% | |
| | 2070 | |

Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research

METZLER

Capital Markets

Executive Summary

| | Growth opportunities in the 'traditional' business as well as in a hy- drogen economy |
|---|--|
| Ready for the transformation process | With its product portfolio, Wolftank-Adisa ('Wolftank') provides solutions for the distribution infrastructure transition from fossil fuels to the hydrogen economy of the future almost seamlessly. |
| At present, the 'traditional' business still dominates Group sales | In 2021, Wolftank generated around three-quarters of its consolidated sales in the Environmental Services and Industrial Coating segments, which are also where the company's roots lie. About twenty percent of sales were generated by the refuel- ing systems business, which has also been in operation for decades. Hydrogen ac- tivities accounted for 6%. |
| Growth opportunities in the 'traditional' business | In the next two decades, a further aging of existing tanks and refueling stations for conventional fuels should ensure a growing demand for maintenance, refurbishment and eventually dismantling. For the rehabilitation and maintenance of tanks and pipes, Wolftank offers self-developed solutions and products such as epoxy resins. Furthermore, Wolftank covers the complete value chain for soil and water remediation. For the deconstruction of a service station, Wolftank also offers complete solutions, i.e. the company dismantles the facilities, remediates any damage to soil or water, handles any necessary official procedures and finally hands over the 'green field' to the customer. Especially in Italy, Wolftank has a very strong position with a market share of over 50%. The company is also active in this field with own branches in Spain, Germany, Brazil, Austria, France and China. |
| as well as in a hydrogen economy | The almost only demand for new refueling stations today is for LNG and hydrogen refueling. Wolftank has been selling engineering services, products and solutions for this for years. The company was involved in hydrogen concepts at a very early stage and has been involved in the planning of various hydrogen refueling stations in Europe, Asia and the USA since 2009. In the design and construction of service stations, the company has well-proven engineering know-how in automation, software and in the transport and storage of fuels, e.g., even under high pressures or extremely cold (cryogenic) temperatures. All of which is necessary for certified safe operation of a service station. With its compression and filling concepts, Wolftank can provide solutions for the distribution infrastructure of hydrogen. |
| Already presentable results for hydro- gen distribution concepts | There are also presentable results here. In 2019, Wolftank supported the research institute of the University of Duisburg Center for Fuel Cell Technology ZBT in automating a hydrogen test field. Last year, Wolftank completed a hydrogen refueling station for buses in Bolzano. Wolftank was able to erect this with a net construction time of 9 weeks. Less than 10 minutes are required for refueling per bus at this facility. |
| To be able to take the next steps rele- vant partners are found | In the past 12 months, Wolftank has succeeded in agreeing cooperations with well-known groups to be able to develop application possibilities for its filling and tank transport solutions in the most structured and expeditious manner possible. These include the cooperation with a subsidiary of the Italian long-distance gas |

METZLER

Capital Markets

METZLER Capital Markets

network operator SNAM (goal: promotion of hydrogen mobility through the construction of refueling stations for cars, buses and trucks) or the Italian subsidiary of the Spanish LNG distributor Molgas (goal: construction of decentralized hydrogen and LNG refueling facilities). The Molgas cooperation also includes their activities in the DACH region. The 50% stake in Mares Srl, a subsidiary of Kuwait Petroleum Italia, which operates around 3,000 refueling stations in Italy under the Q8 brand, also appears promising. The company is run as a joint venture between the two owners. Mares' core business is the construction and servicing of traditional service stations and soil remediation. Now the business areas of Mares are to be combined with the know-how of the Wolftank Group as well as further developed and in the future will additionally include refueling facilities for renewable energies such as (bio)LNG or hydrogen.

Another field of application for Wolftank's technology and refueling know-how is the hydrogen supply of fuel cell power generators. In this field, Wolftank is working together with the German fuel cell specialist SFC Energy for the Italian telecommunications company TIM on a pilot project to set up a hydrogen emergency power supply system for telecommunications equipment. These systems are intended to replace previously used diesel generators. The tender for the order placement, which has a sales potential for Wolftank in the high double-digit million-euro range, is expected by the end of 2022.

Inquiries and pilot projects exist; how-Obviously, it is not easy to make reliable estimates, particularly with regard to the timing of sales, especially for the hydrogen market, which is still in its infancy. As a ever, implementation remains uncerrough indication of the sales opportunities in the hydrogen sector for Wolftank, the volume of current inquiries for hydrogen solutions at the company (c. EUR 140m) as well as the magnitude of the potential TIM/SFC order (EUR70m e) can be used. To remain on the cautious side, we initially assume a total of EUR 27m in sales in this business area for the years 2022 to 2024.

Valuation: Wolftank's 'traditional' tank activities already justify large parts of the current valuation; opportunities from hydrogen activities do not yet seem adequately reflected

tain

Our relative valuation includes a sum-of-the-parts approach. We compare the company's environmental services and industrial coatings businesses with its environmental services peers GFL Environment and Befesa. We compare Wolftank's alternative fuels (LNG) activities with Swedish SWECO (engineering consulting), US Clean Energy (design, building and operation of natural gas refueling stations) and German GEA (mechanical equipment, refrigeration).

Wolftank's hydrogen and biogas businesses are still in their infancy, but have the greatest growth potential. We compare the Biogas business to the renewables operators 7C Solarparken and Encavis. And the Hydrogen business to the Norwegian and French electrolyzer and hydrogen station manufacturers NEL ASA and MC-PHY Energy, and the German fuel cell specialist SFC Energy.

The Environmental Services peers trade at 7x EV/EBITDA 2024e on average, the Engineering peers at 8.5x and the Renewables peers at 11.7x. Most Hydrogen peers are not yet foreseeably profitable in the next few years. Therefore, a sales multiple is usually used here. They are currently trading at 4.5x EV/sales 2024e. Wolftank is trading at 9.2x EV/EBITDA 2024e and at 0.8x EV/sales 2024e.

Based on the results of our absolute (DCF) and relative valuations, the fair value of Wolftank is EUR 25.8 per share.

SWOT analysis

We see the greatest risks for Wolftank in the strong dependence on political (subsidy) decisions and course-setting and in the relatively small size of the company, which limits capacities and economies of scale. We see the greatest opportunities in the company's high technological competence, flexibility and solution orientation.

Strengths

With environmental services and industrial coatings, two core businesses in the portfolio that are growing profitably

Broad geographic footprint

High technological competence and experience also in storage and handling of high pressure or cryogenic fuels like hydrogen, CNG or liquid hydrogen

Weaknesses

In the past two years, the company has reported losses

In the areas of LNG, biogas and hydrogen, the company is highly dependent on political (subsidy) decisions and course settings

The balance sheet ratios are relatively weak

Due to inceasing number of customers from public sector, construction projects have significant longer approval periods

Relatively small company size limits capacity, financing and scaling potential

METZLER

Capital Markets

Opportunities

Full value chain with temporary life extension or decommissioning of fossil fuel tanks and filling stations and concepts for new alternative fuels

Conceptual pioneer in the construction and operation of filling stations for alternative fuels

Promising cooperations with partners with market power

Threats

Many parts and components are sourced from Asia; bottlenecks can delay projects

Delays in the transition phase from fossil fuels to alternatives may lead to customers' reluctance to invest

High dependence on technology and propulsion trends in the field of mobility

Risk of regional sales declines due to local market saturations

Source: Metzler Research

Investment Case

A well rounded product range

Wolftank is a specialist in environmental protection services such as tank, soil and building remediation. At the same time, Wolftank plans and builds distribution in-frastructures for LNG and hydrogen.

METZLER

Capital Markets

The company's business is divided into five segments:

- Hydrogen
- LNG
- Biogas
- Industrial Coatings
- Environmental Services

Distribution of hydrogen: the new in-
frastructure is still in the makingThe Net Zero commitment, to which by far the largest part of the world community
has already committed itself, implies the almost complete abandonment of fossil
fuels within the next 20 to 30 years. This means for all sectors, especially for indus-
try, transport and buildings, electrification and where this is not possible the switch
to CO2-free fuel. This will essentially be hydrogen.Obviously, this creates in part completely new process chains around the produc-
tion of hydrogen, e.g. with wind and solar plants to generate the required electrici-
ty and electrolysers to produce the hydrogen. But also around its distribution.

This is because hydrogen differs significantly from most other fuels and energy carriers, especially in terms of energy density, which has important consequences for the storage, transport and application of hydrogen.

Gravimetric energy density ... Hydrogen is very light but has an extremely high gravimetric energy density. One kilogram of hydrogen contains an enormous amount of energy, making it an efficient and very lightweight energy carrier. The energy density of hydrogen is 33.3 kilowatt hours per kilogram, about three times that of oil or natural gas.

...vs. volumetric energy density In return, the volumetric energy density of hydrogen is particularly low. In fact, per unit space, the energy content of hydrogen is much lower than that of most other fuels and energy carriers. Consequently, the storage or use of hydrogen at atmospheric pressure and temperature requires a considerable amount of space.

By compressing or liquefying hydrogen, the low volumetric energy density can be increased. This greatly facilitates the storage, transport and application of hydrogen.

The volumetric energy density of gaseous hydrogen at atmospheric pressure is 0.09 kg/m³. At a pressure of 350 bar, the volumetric energy density of gaseous hydrogen is 26.1 kg/m³. This increased pressure makes it possible to store considerably more gaseous hydrogen in the same space. The pressure of 350 bar is used in the tanks of trucks and busses carrying gaseous hydrogen, e.g. from Hyzon. A

| | loaded 55-ton truck needs about 50-70 kg of hydrogen to travel 500 to 600 km. At a pressure of 700 bar, the volumetric energy density of gaseous hydrogen is 42 kg/m ³ . At a temperature of -253 degrees, hydrogen becomes liquid and has a volumetric energy density of 71 kg/m ³ . |
|---|--|
| LNG as a transition technology | LNG, which allows less polluting combustion than traditional fuels, is often seen as a transitional technology on the road to the hydrogen economy. |
| Biogas | In the Biogas segment, newly established in 2022, the company intends to pro- duce biogas or hydrogen and to sell it to its customers. The advantage of this strategic expansion of the business model is, on the one hand, that frequently ex- pressed customer wishes can be met. On the other hand, it will generate regular recurring income from the customer base. |
| Maintenance and refurbishment: the old fossil fuel infrastructure will have to be operated for decades to come and then wound down | For the refurbishment and maintenance of tanks and pipes, Wolftank offers self- developed solutions and products such as epoxy resins. Furthermore, Wolftank covers the complete value chain for soil and water remediation. For the decon- struction of a service station, Wolftank also offers complete solutions, i.e. the com- pany dismantles the facilities, remediates any damage to soil or water, handles any necessary official procedures and finally hands over the 'green field' to the cus- tomer. |
| Group sales dominated to date by Envi- ronmental Services and Industrial Coat- ings | In fiscal 2021, Environmental Services accounted for approximately 45% of Group sales, Industrial Coatings for approximately 28%, LNG for 21%, and Hydrogen for 6%. |

| | Hydrogen |
|--|---|
| Hydrogen - solutions for transport, stor- age and distribution | In the hydrogen business area, one focus is on refueling systems and transportable hydrogen storage solutions. With its compression and filling concepts, Wolftank provides solutions for the distribution infrastructure of hydrogen. |
| Experienced engineering know-how in automation, software and storage of gases as core competence | The company contributes its many years of experience as a full-service provider (EPC) of conventional service stations as well as its proven engineering know-how in automation, software and in transport and storage of gases, e.g. also under cryogenic conditions, i.e. at extremely cold temperatures or under high pressure. |
| | The main components and assemblies for hydrogen refueling stations, such as the HSF (Hydrogen Smart Fueller) hydrogen dispenser or the WSC container (mobile hydrogen refueling system), are sourced by Wolftank from the Austrian plant engineering specialist EDC, in which Wolftank has an equity interest (Wolftank holds 33%). Electronic control systems are sourced from Siemens, for example. Sensors and valves from Swagelock. Tanks, for example, from Furui or VRV. Compressors, for example, from Howden, Ventos, Cubogas or Atlas-Copco. And pumps, for example, from Vanzetti, or Cryostar. |
| Wolftank already has valuable experi- ences in hydrogen projects | Wolftank can already boast remarkable project achievements in the field of hydro- gen distribution. For example, the company has been involved in the automation and electrical engineering design of more than 90 hydrogen refueling stations in Europe, Asia, and the U.S., and has been doing so since 2009. In 2019, Wolftank supported the research institute of the University of Duisburg Center for Fuel Cell Technology ZBT in the automation of a hydrogen test field. Last year, Wolftank completed a hydrogen refueling station for buses in Bolzano in a net construction time of nine weeks. |
| Besides filling concepts also transport concepts | In addition to (hydrogen) refueling station design, the company also offers solu- tions for the transport of hydrogen. With Wolftank's certified logistics container, hydrogen can be transported efficiently over short or medium distances. This con- tainer can transport approx. 320kg of hydrogen under 300 bar pressure. |
| | In addition to decentralized transport, the company has the opportunity to upgrade existing gas infrastructure, i.e. pipelines previously used for the distribution of con- ventional gas. This is done using a special coating technology that helps reduce friction and hydrogen corrosion of the pipes. |
| | In the past 12 months, Wolftank has succeeded in agreeing cooperations with sev- eral well-known large corporations to develop potential applications for its filling and tank transport solutions in the most structured and expeditious manner possi- ble. These include the cooperation with a subsidiary of the Italian long-distance gas network operator SNAM, the Italian subsidiary (incl. DACH region) of the Spanish LNG distributor Molgas or with Kuwait Petroleum Italia (Q8 station network). |

| Date | Company | Description | Туре | Reasoning | Product / Service |
|--------|---------------------------------|--|---|---|---|
| Jun-22 | Molgas Energie Italia S.r.I. | Company in the energy services sector distributing liquefied natural gas (LNG) | Cooperation | Construction of LNG and Hydrogen refueling stations Regional focus: Italy and DACH region | H2 refueling station technology LNG technology Know-how in constructing refueling stations (EPC) |
| Apr-22 | Telecom Italia S.p.A. (TIM) | Italian company in the telecomunications sector, leading provider of telephony and internet service in Italy | Cooperation | Pilot project with subsequent call for tenders: • Development, supply and installation of zero- emission hydrogen emergency power generators in Trento, IT • Collaboration with SFC Energy AG, supplier of hydrogen and methanol fuel calle | Wolftank Smart- Cartridge (hydrogen supply for hydrogen fuel cell systems) Large-scale H2 supply management |
| Mar-22 | SFC Energy AG | Leading supplier of hydrogen and mehtanol fuel cells for stationary and mobile hybrid power solutions | Cooperation | Development, supply and installation of zero- emission hydrogen emergency power generators for critical infrastructure in Italy and Austria | Wolftank Smart- Cartridge (hydrogen tank for supplying fuel cell systems) |
| Dec-21 | Mares S.r.I. | Company focused on traditional service stations, turnkey environmental services and major redevelopment projects | MBA (50% stake, full consolidation; JV: Wolftank and Kuwait Petroleum S.p.A) | Mares' operation comprises a network of ~3,000 service stations under "Q8" brand Potenial for synergy across major segments: environmental services and resconstructing of existing service stations towards alternative fields. | H2/LNG technology Environmental Services |
| Nov-21 | APEX Energy Teterow GmbH | German Company specialized in commercial hydrogen plants | Cooperation | Interdisciplinary technology transfer regarding hydrogen solutions for mobility and decentralized energy supply of industrials & residentials Focus: H2 refueling stations for commercial vehicles and buses | H2 technology |
| Jul-21 | EDC-Anlagen- technik GmbH | Manufacturer of complete system solutions, components and software solutions in the field of hydrogen refueling stations | M&A (33,3% stake, full consolidation) | Expanding and intensifying the business relationsship Vertical integration of the supplier of hydrogen components and complete refueling station solutions | H2 technology |
| Apr-21 | Snam S.p.A. (Snam4Mobility) | Subsidiary of the Snam Group, an Italian gas supplier | Cooperation | Support of hydrogen mobility by construction of hydrogen refueling stations in Italy Cooperation extended regarding regional focus to Germany Technology transfer | H2 technology LNG technology |

METZLER

Capital Markets

Another field of application for Wolftank's technology and refueling know-how is the fuel supply of power generators. In this field, Wolftank is working together with the German fuel cell specialist SFC Energy for the Italian telecommunications company TIM on a pilot project for the installation of a hydrogen emergency power supply system for telecommunications equipment. These systems are intended to replace diesel generators previously used at control centers. A pilot order was initially acquired for this project. TIM is expected to issue a call for tenders for the retrofitting of around 3,500 control centers before the end of 2022.

Hydrogen - the market environment

A huge hydrogen market will emerge

The market opportunities for hydrogen are huge. The Net Zero commitment, to which by far the largest part of the global community has already committed itself, implies the almost complete abandonment of fossil fuels within the next 20 to 30 years. This means electrification for all sectors, but especially for industry, transport and buildings, and where this is not possible, a switch to CO2-free fuels. This will essentially be hydrogen. In addition, hydrogen will be used as an energy transport and storage medium as well as a substitute raw material for natural gas. Obviously, this will create completely new process chains around the production of hydrogen with wind and solar plants to generate the required electricity and electrolysers to produce the hydrogen but also around its distribution. For which Wolftank offers concepts and turnkey solutions.

We delve into what Net Zero means for Germany, for example, the market research forecasts for global hydrogen To classify the topic of hydrogen, we first break down the Net Zero target using Germany as an example, showing what it means in terms of electricity demand or required storage capacities - e.g. in the form of hydrogen. We then show forecasts for the development of the expected global demand for hydrogen over the next

demand development and the current trends in alternative drive systems for motor vehicles.

Net Zero in figures using Germany as an example

three decades and the distribution by sector. Finally, we shed light on current trends in alternative vehicle drives, also with regard to Wolftank's expertise in the field of refueling stations.

METZLER

Capital Markets

The connection between the emission of greenhouse gases such as CO2 or methane and global warming is scientifically proven. At the 21st UN Climate Change Conference in 2015 (COP 21), almost all the countries of the world signed the so-called Paris Agreement, in which they pledged to limit the increase in global warming caused by the greenhouse effect to well below two degrees Celsius. Calculated from the beginning of industrialization until the year 2100. The average value for the years 1850 to 1900 is used as the pre-industrial value.

However, according to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), limiting the increase to 1.5 degrees is necessary to prevent worse consequences. And: In order to reach the 1.5-degree target, humans would have to neutralize their influence on the global climate by 2050 at the latest.

Climate neutrality is thus the state that Net Zero programs are supposed to make possible. Emissions that are still occurring are to be offset by the removal of carbon dioxide to the same extent. The result is that the carbon footprint is zero on balance, i.e. net zero.

In recent years, the number of governments striving to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions to zero has continued to grow. To date, net-zero pledges cover about 90% of global GDP and 85% of the world's population.

Germany is even aiming to achieve this target by 2045.

As mentioned, Net Zero means that no more greenhouse gases are released into the atmosphere or their emissions are fully compensated. In a Net Zero world, the entire energy demand, which is currently still predominantly covered by fossil fuels, must be generated almost entirely from renewable sources. So not just today's electricity demand, but all oil, coal and gas combustion.

For Germany, the net-zero target means a quadrupling of green energy generation capacity In our study 'Net Zero - ambitious but doable' of 1 July 2021, we used the example of Germany to determine the renewable capacity required to almost completely replace fossil fuels, as is necessary to achieve the net zero target. For a simple extrapolation to the global level, it can be assumed that Germany accounts for about 2.5 % of the world's energy demand, which means that worldwide, about 40 times the capacities we have determined for Germany need to be built.

The connection to the topic of hydrogen is primarily that the generation of 'green' electricity is relatively unsteady, decentralized and often not synchronized with consumption and therefore has to be stored and transported.

Our analysis is based in part on data from our scientific cooperation partner, the Fraunhofer Institute in Munich.

In our calculations, we have already taken into account a significant reduction in energy demand of around 30% through energy-saving measures in all sectors, as targeted by the EU and the German government.

Even then, this transition would require a quadrupling of green energy generation capacity in Germany.

PV and wind power capacities will increase about sixfold

The expansion of renewable energy sources will mainly take place in photovoltaics and wind energy, whose capacities will increase about six-fold. For Germany, this means an addition of 630 GW of PV and wind power capacity in the next 24 years, i.e. around 26 GW per year (2020: 6.5 GW).

METZLER

Capital Markets

Total energy consumption will decrease; the share of renewable energy will increase to 100%



Sources: Umweltbundesamt, Fraunhofer ISE, Metzler Research

Total renewable capacity must be quadrupled



Hydrogen will play an important role

Around one third of the energy supply in 2045 will be stored and made available (for transport or as a green fuel) in the form of green hydrogen. The rest will be

consumed directly as green electricity or stored via electrochemical storage (batteries), thermal storage (hot water storage) or mechanical energy storage (pumped storage power plants, compressed air storage, flywheel storage, etc.).

The conventional energy sources to be replaced consist mainly of directly burned oil and gas in the transport and building sectors.

In the transport sector in particular, little has been done to avoid CO2 for many years.

| Field of action | 1990 (in million tonnes of CO ₂ equivalents) | 2014 (in million tonnes of CO ₂ equivalents) | 2030 (in million tonnes of CO ₂ equivalents) | 2030 (reduction in % compared to 1990) |
|-----------------|---|---|---|--|
| Energy sector | 466 | 358 | 175-183 | 62-61 % |
| Buildings | 209 | 119 | 70-72 | 67-66 % |
| Transport | 163 | 160 | 95-98 | 42-40 % |
| Industry | 283 | 181 | 140-143 | 51-49 % |
| Agriculture | 88 | 72 | 58-61 | 34-31 % |
| Subtotal | 1209 | 890 | 538-557 | 56-54 % |
| Other | 39 | 12 | 5 | 87 % |
| Total | 1248 | 902 | 543-562 | 56-55 % |

Little progress on CO2 reduction in the transport sector in Germany

For this reason, this sector has been given the highest priority for the use of hydrogen in the German government's national hydrogen strategy, along with the industrial sector.

The strategy paper lists measures such as:

- Market activation to support investments in hydrogen vehicles (light and heavy trucks/commercial vehicles, buses, trains, inland and coastal shipping, passenger cars in fleet applications).
- The coordinated development of a needs-based refueling infrastructure to sup-ply vehicles also in heavy road freight transport, public transport and local rail passenger transport will be promoted. The Energy and Climate Fund (EKF) contains EUR 3.4 bn in grants for the construction of refueling and charging infrastructure for all alternative technologies until 2023.
- Targeted implementation of the Clean Vehicles Directive (CVD) to support zero-emission vehicles in municipal transport.
- Exchange on the prospects for hydrogen technologies in logistics in the "Innovation Program Logistics".

| Hydrogen - demand will grow strongly | |
|--------------------------------------|--|
|--------------------------------------|--|

| | As already mentioned above, green hydrogen plays an important role for countries and industries that want to achieve their net-zero emissions targets by 2050. Countries that have published a national hydrogen strategy account for about 50% of global GDP. |
|--|--|
| | The clear advantage of green hydrogen produced by electrolysis is that there are no direct carbon dioxide emissions from either its production or combustion. |
| | Hydrogen can be used to produce synthetic fuel for mobility purposes or to gener- ate electricity in fuel cells. It can be used - instead of oil - to obtain raw materials for the chemical industry. In other words, hydrogen can be used to do virtually everything for which oil, coal and natural gas were previously used - without re- leasing CO2. |
| | In addition, hydrogen can serve as a storage medium for fluctuating renewable en- ergy sources. Unlike batteries, which gradually discharge, hydrogen is also suitable for long-term (pressure) storage without major energy loss. |
| | Hydrogen is virtually everywhere, accounting for an estimated 75% of the mass of the entire universe. |
| | However, it only occurs in bound form, as a component of larger chemical com- pounds such as water, acids, hydrocarbons and other organic compounds. |
| Hydrogen must be produced with addi- tional energy input | Hydrogen must be produced with an additional energy input and is thus a sec- ondary energy carrier, comparable to electricity or heat; consequently, it does not count as a primary energy. |
| | All types of fossil and non-fossil primary energy carriers can be used to produce hydrogen, i.e., for example, coal, oil, natural gas, solar energy, wind power or hydropower. Conventional processes split natural gas or crude oil into hydrogen and CO2 with the addition of heat. This hydrogen is called 'gray' when the CO2 is released unused into the atmosphere (about 10 tons per ton of hydrogen). If the goal is CO2 avoidance, this process is not an option. If the CO2 produced is captured and not released into the atmosphere, it is referred to as 'blue' hydrogen. The CO2 can, for example, be stored underground or further processed as a raw material. Blue hydrogen is already referred to as 'clean'. Green' hydrogen is produced by water electrolysis using electricity from renewable sources. This manufacturing process does not produce any direct carbon dioxide emissions. |
| Hydrogen is already a large market - so far still mainly in fertilizer production and refineries | According to IEA, up to now, about 60% of the worldwide demand for hydrogen of 87 Mt by 2020 has been in the chemical industry, especially in the production of ammonia (NH3). |
| | Ammonia is a chemical substance that is mainly used for the production of fertiliz- ers. Ammonia is formed from the elements hydrogen and nitrogen in an equilibri- um reaction. |
| | Around 40% is used by refineries, mainly in cracking. Cracking is a material con- version process which, for example, is used in petroleum refining to split long- chain hydrocarbons (heavy fuel oil) into short-chain hydrocarbons (gasoline, diesel, |

light fuel oil). During hydrocracking, large quantities of hydrogen are added to the process.

METZLER

Capital Markets

Up to now, the production of this (gray) hydrogen has been carried out almost entirely using fossil primary energy.

- IEA expects hydrogen demand to reachIEA expects that global hydrogen consumption will increase from less than 90 million tons in 2050528 Mt by 2050IEA expects that global hydrogen consumption will increase from less than 90 million tons in 2020 to more than 200 million tons in 2030 and some 528 million tons in 2050; the share of clean hydrogen increases from 10% in 2020 to 70% in 2030 and to 98% in 2050. About half of the clean hydrogen produced globally in 2030 comes from electrolysis and the remainder from coal and natural gas with CCUS (Carbon capture, utilisation and storage), with this ratio varying widely by region.
- Around 1/3 of global hydrogen demand will be in the transport sector will also be met by hydrogen-based fuels.

Of the 528 million tons of hydrogen produced in 2050, about 25% will be used in industrial plants (including refineries), with the remainder being commercial hydrogen (hydrogen produced by one company to sell to others).



Global hydrogen and hydrogen-based fuel use in IEA's net zero emissions scenario

Hydrogen drive for motor vehicles

Passenger cars - the decision in favor of battery technology seems to have already been made The topic of alternative, i.e. zero-emission, drive systems for vehicles has occupied researchers and manufacturers for many years. Among the most discussed technologies are:

| | Purely battery-powered electric vehicles (PEV - direct use of electricity), |
|--|---|
| | Plug-in hybrid vehicles (PHEV - combination of a battery and an electric motor with a fuel tank and an internal combustion engine), |
| | Fuel cell electric vehicles (FCEV - use of a fuel cell to convert hydrogen into electricity) and |
| | Internal combustion engine vehicles based on synthetic fuels or hydrogen (ICEV - burning biofuels or hydrogen). |
| | For a long time, the development of battery concepts and hydrogen concepts seemed to be neck-and-neck in the passenger cars sector. |
| | Meanwhile, observable figures for the passenger car market reflect a clear (at least preliminary) result: At the beginning of 2021, there were about 25,000 hydrogen fuel cell cars on the roads worldwide, and more than 90 percent of these vehicles are in just four countries: South Korea, the U.S., China and Japan. Currently, there are only two fuel cell passenger car models in mass production worldwide: the Hyundai Nexo and the Toyota Mirai. Around 540 hydrogen refueling stations are in operation worldwide. |
| | By contrast, there are currently around fifteen million battery-powered electric and plug-in hybrid vehicles on the world's roads. Almost all manufacturers now offer such vehicles, and more than 400 different models are available worldwide. Battery electric vehicles draw their power from the electricity grid (capacity problems may arise here, however). For users who do not have charging facilities at home and for long-distance journeys, charging at publicly accessible charging stations is essential. In 2020, around 1.3 million public charging stations were in operation worldwide, of which around a quarter were fast-charging stations (with a capacity of at least 22 kW). |
| Trucks - there is much to be said for hy- drogen propulsion | What seems to be already decided for passenger cars, namely that battery tech- nology is likely to prevail, does not yet seem to have been decided for heavy goods vehicles. And the pressure to develop a viable and sustainable concept is high. The number of trucks is significantly smaller than the vast number of passenger cars. But they drive significantly longer distances on average and use more fuel in the process. For example, with 41 million metric tons of CO2 emissions (2019), road freight accounts for around a quarter of transport emissions in Germany. |
| | In the EU, truck manufacturers must reduce the CO2 emissions of their fleets by 15 percent by 2025 and by 30 percent by 2030 in order to avoid penalties. After all, Europe wants to be CO2-neutral by 2050. |
| | In heavy and long-distance transport, the battery concept is not considered an op- tion, at least not yet. For 40-ton trucks, which travel 150,000 km or more per year and of which just under 60,000 are registered in Germany, or in opencast mining and in the agricultural and construction site sector, a battery-electric drive has so far been too heavy, too large, too expensive or impractical. |
| | Hydrogen is an obvious choice because it can be converted for propulsion in two ways. Either by a fuel cell that generates electrical energy from hydrogen, which then drives an electric motor. Or by direct combustion in a conventional piston en- gine. Both concepts are CO2 emission-free. Fuel cells are sensitive and currently only work with high-purity hydrogen. An internal combustion engine, on the other hand, can also cope with poorer hydrogen quality. |

Even if the argumentation in favor of hydrogen is mostly and primarily aimed at heavy and long-distance transport, there are also and already quite plausible concepts that run counter to this logic. The U.S. manufacturer Hyzon, for example, is currently not targeting long-distance transport with its H2 trucks, but regional distribution transport. While a central hydrogen refueling station is sufficient for the latter, long-distance freight transport requires a more extensive hydrogen refueling network.

METZLER

Capital Markets

The main arguments Pro ...

An overview of the main arguments in favor of hydrogen propulsion:

- Of all known fuels, hydrogen has the highest energy density. It exceeds the energy density of diesel by a factor of three and that of an electric car battery by up to a factor of a hundred. Compared to battery-electric propulsion, it allows significantly greater ranges, shorter refueling times and virtually the usual transport capacity.
- A price of EUR 5 per kg of hydrogen is coming within reach. A 40-ton truck consumes around 8 kg of hydrogen per 100 km compared to around 33 liters of diesel. In terms of operating costs, hydrogen is thus clearly becoming a viable alternative to fossil fuels. The price of the vehicle is not considered decisive in the commercial vehicle sector. Daimler Truck AG has customers with more than 100,000 trucks that travel more than ten million miles per day. Cost advantages of just a few cents per kilometer already pay off. Daimler Truck AG expects fuel cell trucks to match the total cost of ownership of diesel trucks from 2027.
- When hydrogen is used in internal combustion engines, many components of internal combustion engines can continue to be used with minor modifications and this also preserves the expertise of the European automotive industry as well as many jobs. And: The EU recently decided that in the commercial vehicle sector in contrast to passenger cars hydrogen combustion engines are also considered emission-free if they produce less than 1 gram of CO2 per kilowatt hour. Truck manufacturer Deutz, for example, plans to go into series production with a hydrogen combustion engine in 2024. In four-axle vehicles, for example, there is simply no room for batteries or fuel cells.
- Compared to lithium batteries, fuel cells have the advantage of very good recyclability of around 98 percent of used materials. Fuel cells do not contain any rare raw materials such as cobalt and do not have such high-quality requirements in production as battery cells.
- Although geologically not a scarce resource, there are fears that the production capacities for lithium will not be sufficient to meet the forecast demand in the medium term, especially for EVs. Lengthy approval procedures and interruptions in planned projects are already causing limited supply and sharply increased prices.

... and contra hydrogen drive for trucks

s However, the hydrogen drive concept also has weaknesses, which is why it is difficult to make a definite statement about its potential triumph.

Transport and storage of hydrogen are energy-intensive. At atmosphere pressure, one kilogram of hydrogen has a volume of over eleven cubic meters (one kilogram of hydrogen is sufficient for a passenger car for about 80 to 100 kilometers). Because the hydrogen cannot (so far) be pumped through existing

gas pipelines (the gas would escape at the valves and the steel would be damaged), it has to be transported by road to refueling stations. The gas specialist Linde offers to supply hydrogen in liquid form. The boiling point is -253 degrees, which means that liquefaction needs very powerful cooling systems that require a corresponding amount of energy

METZLER

Capital Markets

To date, hydrogen-powered vehicles have a lower efficiency (or effectiveness) than battery-powered vehicles. Above all, the electricity-intensive production of hydrogen means that up to twice as much electricity is needed to cover the same distance (well-to-wheel efficiency; around 70% of the stored electricity is used as motive power; this value is significantly lower for hydrogen cars at around 20% compared to electric cars). Of course, this comparison is only 'fair' if one assumes that the same renewable (primary) energy source is used directly. Since the intermediate storage of green electricity is precisely a problem that is to be solved with hydrogen, for example, the comparison is flawed anyway.

The concepts of the most important truck manufacturers. Most manufacturers attach great significance to hydrogen... Daimler Truck and Volvo are jointly developing a fuel cell system for trucks, with series production set to begin in the second half of the decade. Truck manufacturer Renault is also involved. Daimler has so far manufactured the GenH2 heavy-duty truck prototype, with two fuel cells, two electric motors and two stainless steel tanks for 80 kilograms of liquid hydrogen stored at minus 253 degrees. Regarding technology concepts, Daimler Truck is taking an open-minded approach to the energy transition in truck propulsion and is developing both heavy trucks with batteries and those with hydrogen as an energy carrier. Hydrogen trucks could be a viable option "especially in tough long-haul operations, particularly in terms of total cost of ownership."

Daimler Truck is counting on a hydrogen-based energy system of the future and recalls that more than 40 governments have "launched extensive hydrogen action plans" because many areas could only be decarbonized with hydrogen as an energy carrier. Daimler Trucks expects "hundreds of billions of euros to be invested in hydrogen production, transport and infrastructure by 2030."

Toyota and Hino plan to test fuel cell trucks with a total weight of 25 tons in practice in Japan in 2022. The companies are also developing a fuel cell truck for the U.S. market. In China, Toyota is working with five Chinese companies in the "United Fuel Cell Systems R&D" to develop fuel cell trucks.

U.S. based company Nikola and Iveco from Italy are cooperating. Nikola has been using the Iveco plant in UIm since the end of 2021. At the beginning of 2022, the Nikola Tre was launched as an electric truck in Europe and the U.S., and in 2023 it will be delivered with a fuel cell. Bosch supplies fuel cells and central computers, among other things. In 2021, Nikola, IVECO, and OGE announced the signing of a memorandum of understanding to plan a joint business model for the piped transport of hydrogen for FCEVs from various production sites to hydrogen refueling stations.

Hyundai says it is producing the first heavy truck with fuel cell electric - the Xcient Fuel Cell – in serial production. The first examples are in use in Switzerland for freight forwarders and the Coop and Migros retail chains. Hyundai plans to deploy 1,600 of these hydrogen trucks by 2025.

The U.S. company Hyzon Motors, specialized in fuel cell commercial vehicles, began delivering its first fuel cell trucks to European customers last summer. Hyzon is

currently not targeting long-distance transport with its H2 trucks but regional distribution transport.

Capital Markets

... the VW Group remains sceptical (but this seems to change under the new CEO) Traton (Metzler recommendation Buy, pt. EUR 33) is focusing primarily on battery cells in the mid and long term. In doing so, Traton intends to take advantage of the synergies within the VW Group (Metzler recommendation Buy, pt. EUR 320), which has announced the construction of its own cell factories. The VW Group sees hydrogen trucks also establishing themselves on the market in the next ten years, but only in niches, such as for cement mixers or for long-distance buses that cannot charge enough electricity during breaks. In their view the hydrogen truck is much less efficient and much more expensive than the battery truck.

Scania, a subsidiary of Traton, wants to sell one in ten e-drive vehicles in Europe in 2025, and one in two by 2030. However, an extra fast-charging network for electric trucks would also have to be expanded in Europe.

However, Traton's Munich-based subsidiary MAN is developing both hydrogen combustion engines and fuel cell drives. Traton is also cooperating on fuel cell drives with the Japanese truck manufacturer Hino, which belongs to Toyota.

All in all, the new CEO of the VW Group, Blume, appears to be ready to make a strategic shift on the subject of electromobility. Unlike his predecessor, he is also in favor of so-called e-fuels. In his view, the goals of the Paris climate agreement cannot be achieved with electric mobility alone.

Competitors

Founded in 2015 by Air Liquide, Daimler Truck, Hyundai, Linde, OMV, Shell and Total, the German operator of hydrogen refueling stations H2 Mobility has established a network of almost 100 refueling stations (700 bar) in Germany. They expect an expansion to 300 by 2030. More than 200 are to be large-scale facilities for refueling trucks and buses (350 bar). However, there are only around 35 of these so far. In this way, the company wants to prepare for the ramp-up of heavy vehicles with alternative propulsion. H2 Mobility aims to be profitable by 2026. Hydrogen electrolyzer manufacturers Nel Asa or McPhy also offer solutions for the necessary infrastructure (H2 refueling stations, H2 transport).

Our expectation for the segment development

We are optimistic that Wolftank can participate in the dynamic development of the hydrogen market with its distribution solutions. Therefore, we see potential for future growth through the construction of refueling stations and through refueling and filling concepts. In addition, we assume opportunities for the use of Wolftank's hydrogen solutions in other areas of the transport sector, such as ships or aircraft, or in other sectors, such as buildings or industry.



As an general contractor (EPC), Wolftank offers complete projects and full services for new tank facilities and service stations.

METZLER

Capital Markets

LNG - the market environment

| | Liquid Natural Gas - LNG - consists of about 90% methane (CH4), which is lique- fied by cooling to below -162 degrees at atmospheric pressure. The volume can thus be reduced by 1/600 at high energy density. It can thus be stored and trans- ported. In mobility, LNG is mainly used as a fuel for heavy-duty vehicles (heavy trucks and tractor-trailers) and in shipping. |
|---|--|
| LNG as bridging technology on the way to achieve emissions targets | LNG is seen as a bridging technology in achieving the European Commission's environmental policy goals for combating climate change, which call for a significant reduction in transport-induced emissions (greenhouse gas emissions). In contrast to passenger transport, no or not enough completely emission-free or climate-neutral technology alternatives are available to date. Therefore, LNG is considered as one option for reducing CO2 emissions by up to 25% compared to conventional diesel engines in the short term and complying with the strict emission limits of the Euro VI standards. In the commercial vehicle sector, heavy duty vehicles account for 80% of energy consumption. Approx. 73% of freight transport within the European Union is by road, i.e. mostly by trucks. |
| | When LNG is used, emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOX) and particulate matter are also reduced compared to diesel engines, and traffic noise can be lowered. |
| | Hence, leading truck manufacturers already offer LNG models with comparable ranges to diesel engines. These range between 1,000km (e.g. Scania, Volvo) and 1,600km (e.g. Iveco, Scania) and are particularly suitable for long-distance freight transport. |
| Government subsidies (still) driving growth in LNG trucks and LNG infra- structure market | Due to the EU's climate policy goals, the LNG truck and LNG fuel market benefits from government subsidies from individual member states. In Germany, for example, LNG trucks are exempt from truck tolls until the end of 2023 and benefit from a lower energy tax rate until the end of 2026 (LNG: EUR 13.90/MWh, standard rate: EUR 31.80/MWh). From a total cost of ownership (TCO) perspective, this will make LNG trucks competitive over their life cycle despite higher initial purchasing costs. The measures are backed by the EU Directive AFID (2014/94/EU) from 2014, which calls for the development of sufficient infrastructure for alternative fuels. It demands adequate coverage for the TEN-T core network (trans-European transport network) by the end of 2025 and for the TEN-T network by the end of 2030. As a result, the number of LNG refueling stations built in Europe has risen to over 500 (as of 02/2022). Demand for the year 2025 is estimated by the industry association at over 750 and for the year 2030 at over 1,500 refueling stations (ACEA estimate, 2021). Other estimates even forecast a need for 2,000 service stations in 2030 (NGVA estimate). Most recently, an increasing impact of government subsidies could be noticed at LNG refueling stations: In Germany, for example, sales increased from under 20,000 tons to over 130,000 tons of LNG within 2 years. |

| but political headwind looms | In a well-to-wheel (WtW) consideration, critics say, the so-called emission savings should be put in relation to total emissions. When comparing the total emissions of different fuel and propulsion technologies over the entire value chain, i.e. from the extraction and transport of the fuel to the actual combustion in the vehicle, the emission savings potential of LNG is reduced to 2% and 9%, respectively, according to various studies. |
|---|---|
| | That is why for some time there has been upcoming resistance whether LNG fuel should continue to be considered a suitable tool for achieving emissions targets and should be promoted politically as a result. |
| BioLNG – a possible game changer? | Bio-methane can be obtained from the upgrading of biogas by, among other things, splitting off CO2 and then liquefied to produce bio-LNG. Its combustion properties are comparable to those of ordinary LNG (produced from fossil natural gas). Moreover, LNG can be blended with bio-LNG to any degree. The resulting LNG mix is consequently more emission-neutral - "greener." The current share of bio-LNG at German LNG stations, for example, is low at less than 0.7%, but is expected to increase significantly in the coming years. Current construction projects of bio-LNG plants promise to be able to increase the bio-LNG share "significantly" by 2024. However, there are also doubts about whether bio-methane or synthetic e-methane can be produced in sufficient quantities to meet heavy-duty transport demand. Potential recognition as a zero-emission under the EU fleet limit would further encourage future demand for bio-LNG as a fuel. Overall, it remains to be seen what climate policy consensus the EU will reach regarding LNG technology in transport and the associated further government support. |
| Regional differences in the LNG market | Chinese LNG demand in the transport sector has developed even more positively. Cost advantages and political support due to lower emission values have con- tributed to market growth. Consequently, LNG infrastructure has also seen rapid growth from 200 LNG refueling stations (year: 2011) to over 2,500 (year: 2018). A similar development can possibly be expected in India, where it has already been announced that up to 1,000 LNG refueling stations will be built in the next three years, again with the aim of reducing emissions in the transport sector. Insofar it is quite fitting that lveco, a leading LNG truck manufacturer, has discovered India as an attractive market and recently presented a LNG truck for the first time. |
| At least in the short therm, European gas shortage is causing concern | In context of the current geopolitical situation resulting from the Ukraine war, there is a shortage of natural gas (and therefore LNG) and the supply guarantee in countries with a high share of Russian gas imports is under scrutiny. The tight supply has recently caused natural gas prices to rise sharply. |

250 Netherlands TTF Natural Gas Forward 1M 204,5 200 YTD +166% 100 50 Ø~20 EUR/Mwh 0 Aug/20 Feb/21 Aug/21 Feb/22 Aug/22 Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research

Gas price surges to new high due to contuining supply shortage in Europe

METZLER

Capital Markets

Competitors

The market is relatively fragmented. The competitors include subsidiaries of gas companies (e.g. Liqvis GmbH, a subsidiary of Uniper) and a large number of (private) companies with expertise in conventional service stations with most of them also offer their services for LNG stations.

Our expectation for the segment development

Taking into account the LNG price trend and the uncertainties surrounding gas supply, we expect to see, at least temporarily, a restraint expansion of the LNG refueling station network. Accordingly, we are cautious in our estimates for Wolftank's LNG segment revenues in 2022 and 2023.

Biogas

Wolftank intends to produce green hydrogen from bio-hydrocarbons by steam reforming as well as electrolysis in the future. The company also plans to produce bio-LNG by liquefying biomethane. The steam reformers will be located where there are existing infrastructures. These are, for example, former refineries or chemical plants (with an existing high-pressure gas connection). The electrolysers are to be used directly at photovoltaic plants, water turbines or wind power plants.

METZLER

Capital Markets

Biogas - the market environment

Biogas is produced when organic matter or substrate (energy crops, slurry, sewage sludge, biowaste, etc.) decomposes under anaerobic conditions with the help of bacteria in biogas plants and is converted through several controlled processes. Necessarily, the plant carbon is incorporated into two components of the biogas during the fermentation process: First, back into carbon dioxide (CO2) and second, into methane (CH₄). The proportion of methane is between 50%-75% depending on the substrate used for fermentation - the rest of the biogas is mainly CO2.

Bio-gas is usually used to generate electricity and heat by means of cogeneration in combined heat and power plants. Another application is the processing of biomethane. This involves desulfurization, drying, and carbon (CO2) capture to increase the methane content. At the end of these processes, a gas with a methane content of 96% is produced. This so-called bio-methane is considered a climateneutral, green gas and has the same combustion properties as conventional natural gas. In addition, bio-methane can be liquefied under cooling in the same way as natural gas, resulting in bio-LNG.

Possible use in the production of hydrogen

Steam reforming of bio-methane represents a technical alternative to electrolysis in the production of climate-neutral (green) hydrogen. Under bio(mass)-to-X, as the thermochemical technology is often called, bio-methane obtained from bio-gas is reformed to hydrogen in a steam reformer. These gas reformers can be commissioned on site, i.e. decentralized at biogas plants, allowing existing plants to be used. The local production of hydrogen could thus close regional material cycles and secure the supply.

Our expectation for the segment development

Wolftank is targeting an output of approx. 2000 kg H2/day. We assume a sequential ramp-up of production to this level from 2023 to 2026.

| | Environmental Services |
|--|--|
| Soil and water remediation and conta- mination monitoring | The Environmental Services business unit offers a wide range of services including various soil and water remediation processes as well as a contamination monitor- ing and detection system based on smart sensor technology. |
| Soil and water remediation | As a full-service provider, Wolftank covers the complete value chain in soil and wa- ter remediation with mobile testing laboratories and its various process technolo- gies. This "one-stop-shop" solution ranges from comprehensive environmental due diligence to appropriate remediation measures carried out by an experienced team of engineers and geologists. |
| | For renaturation, Wolftank applies various remediation methods. Geoengineering uses soil vapor extraction (for volatile and semi-volatile contaminants) or chemical treatment (neutralization of contaminants). The remediation process with plants, phyto-remediation, uses various plants that absorb pollutants and lead to their mi- crobial degradation. The same principle is followed by the use of living organisms, such as microbes or bacteria, to remove contaminants and toxins in soil and water. |
| | When closing a service station, Wolftank offers a complete solution, i.e. the com- pany dismantles the facilities, remediates any damage to the soil or water, handles any necessary official procedures and finally hands over the 'green field' to the cus- tomer. |
| | In total, Wolftank's track record counts over 4,000 environmental remediation projects and approximately 2,500 environmental consultations. |
| Monitoring and detection systems | Wolftank uses a system of physiochemical reaction sensors and wireless commu- nication technology for the technical implementation of continuous monitoring and early detection of soil and water contamination and can thus ensure access to the necessary data at any time. These solutions are applied in cases where there is an increased risk of pollution or leakage of harmful liquids. |
| | Applications are found in the petrochemical industry, including tank farms, indus- trial plants or service stations. |
| | By pursuing a buy-and-build strategy, the company has been able to acquire tech- nological know-how through the acquisitions of Maremmana Ecologia Srl. and Rovereta Srl, thus expanding its depth of added value in soil remediation and recy- cling. Rovereta Srl, for example, has the know-how to recylcle oil from contaminat- ed substances (soil or water) and return it to the cycle. In this way, Wolftank can extract several million liters of heating oil per year and sell them on the market. |
| | Customers in this area include, for example, the Italian oil company ENI, with which a framework agreement for soil remediation has been concluded. The geo- graphic focus of the environmental services business is on Europe and especially Italy. In recent years, Wolftank has expanded its international presence with offices in Brazil (02/2020) and China (05/2018). Wolftank also offers these services in Spain and France. In Africa, Wolftank works with exclusive contractors. |

International growth through buy-andbuild strategy

Wolftank has made several acquisitions in the last four years, primarily to advance the internationalization of its business but also to strengthen its competitive position in its core market Italy. The acquisitions of the competitor Rovereta and the stake in Petroltecnica have enabled Wolftank to expand its competitive position and at the same time strengthen its international perception as a relevant player in the segment. The acquisitions of the foreign suppliers AlterEco S.L Madrid and Sometec Aqua accelerated growth in Spain and Latin America.

Wolftank persues a buy-and-build strategy to acquire technological know-how and to accelerate international growth

| Date | Company | Description | Туре | Reasoning |
|---------|-----------------------------------|--|---|---|
| Dec-21 | Mares S.r.I. | Company focused on traditional service stations, turnkey environmental services and redevelopment projects | MBA (50% stake, joint venture between Wolftank and Kuwait Petroleum S.p.A) | Mares' operation comprises a network of ~3,000 service stations under "QB" brand Potenial for synergy across major segments: environmental services and resconstructing of existing service stations towards alternative fuels |
| Jun-20 | Rovereta S.r.I. | Recyling company focused on reprocessing of contaminated soil and water | M&A (majority stake, seller: Petroltecnica S.p.A.) | Cost and R&D synergies Extension of the value chain Acceleration of international growth |
| Jun-20 | Petroltecnica S.p.A. | Multinational company engaged in soil and water remediation & recylcing | M&A (10% minority stake as part of the Rovereta S.r.I. transaction) | Expansion of the existing product range for existing customers See also: Rovereta transaction above |
| May-20 | Sometec Aqua | Spanish company specialized in soil and water remediation with regional focus on Spain | MBA (100%) | Horizontal acquisition of Spanish competitor Acceleration of growth & market share in Spain Further persuing a buy-and-build strategy in the environmental services segment |
| May-19 | City Ningbo (Zhenhai District) | Major sub-provincial city in northeast Zhejiang province, located 220 km south of Shanghai | Cooperation | Collaboration in the area of environmental protection Use of Woltank's in-situ remediation technology in Ningbo's chemical and industrial park |
| Apr-19 | OTI Greentech AG | International provider of chemicals and services for industrial applications | Cooperation | Distribution agreement: Wolftank Adisa appointed as exlusive distributor in selected countries of OTI Greentech's ECOSOLUT product line |
| Oct-18 | AlterEcoo S.L | Company specialized in project development and engineering services | MBA (60%) | Horizontal acquisition to create synergy potential Faster market entry in Spanish and Latin America |
| Jul-18 | Maremmana Ecologia Srl | Company engaged in environmental services | Capital increase (stake increased from 65% up to 90.2%) | Growth strategy in the environmental services segment |
| Jan-18 | DRK 32 GmbH | Supplier and service provider of tank liners, leak detectors and pipe systems | M&A (100%) | Complementary products and distribution network |
| Sources | : Wolftank, Metzl | er Research | | |

Environmental Services - the market environment

The market for environmental remediation is expected to develop positively. The market research institute MarketsandMarkets estimates growth at CAGR of around 9% p.a. for the period between 2021 and 2026.

The main drivers of this growth are:

- stricter regulation regarding environmental protection. For example, China passed a new soil protection law at the beginning of 2019, which obliges companies nationwide to prevent and control soil pollution.
- growing demand due to the dismantling of service stations and the subsequent recultivation of the land. Alternative mobility technologies pose a chal-

lenge to the profitability of conventional service stations. Boston Consulting sees the continued existence of up to 80% of conventional service stations threatened by 2035, depending on the market penetration of electrified vehicles and alternative mobility concepts. With a geographical focus on Italy and Spain, Wolftank is active in countries with a particularly high number of refueling stations. The closure of more than 10,000 service stations in Europe within the next 10 years does not seem unrealistic.

Number of petrol stations - regional focus on Italy supports further growth within the segment of environmental services



Sources: National Oil Industry Associations, Metzler Research

Competitors

In Italy, Wolftank has established a market-leading position through acquisitions. In general, the market for environmental remediation is relatively fragmented. Environmental and soil remediation services are offered by a variety of local providers. Larger waste management companies such as McAuliffe also offer environmental services in their product portfolio.

Our expectations for the segment development

We expect Wolftank to participate in the market growth for environmental services and achieve high single-digit growth rates in the coming years. The good positioning in Italy and Spain should contribute to this development as should a diminishing, pandemic-related headwind in the development of sales potential, e.g. in Wolftank's relatively new markets of Brazil and China.

Industrial Coatings

Tank refurbishment and maintenance

In the coatings or industrial coatings segment, Wolftank offers self-developed solutions and products for the refurbishment and maintenance of tanks and pipes.

METZLER

Capital Markets

Benefits of this service from the customer's point of view are prevention and thus avoidance of possible environmental damage that could occur due to old or corroded installations. Biofuel E10, for example, with higher ethanol content, causes corrosion in metal tanks.

In addition, considerable CO2- and cost savings result from the extension of the useful life of existing plants. The implementation is carried out during normal operation within a few days, so that there is no significant loss of productivity for the customer during this time.

The company's core products in this area include technology for double-walled renovation - DOPA® technology - and Epoflex® products - epoxy resins.

Using DOPA® technology, the company converts previously single-walled tanks into double-walled tanks. The technology is exclusive worldwide and certified according to ISO standards. On request, a remotely controllable system can also be implemented to monitor the vacuum inside the walls. This is called a structural lining of the vessel so that, should the original wall be corroded, it remains functional and protected. The service life can thus be extended by up to 30 years. The DOPA lining system consists of several layers to be applied. The self-developed epoxy resin products, Epoflex[®], are also used here. In addition to DOPA technology, these can also be used for single-wall coatings, e.g. as corrosion protection or for local cracks and fractures. The patented epoxy resins developed in-house have special properties. They are environmentally friendly and easy to process, solvent-free and non-flammable. This means that, unlike cheap resins, they are suitable for use in enclosed spaces. They also adhere particularly well. This is important because the epoxy resin is sprayed or rolled on with a layer thickness of up to four millimeters and must also adhere to vertical surfaces. The stronger the resin adheres, the more durable a tank will be. It must withstand all the movements of the base materials and the stored product, whether fuel or chemical, must not dissolve the resin nor must plastic particles get into the stored product.

Wolftank also offers both products, DOPA and Epoflex, to other remediation companies. Their operators are trained and certified by Wolftank.

The customer side include well-known corporations from the oil and gas industry, such as Total Energies, ExxonMobil, ENI, BP and Shell. In its 30-year history, Wolf-tank has rehabilitated over 25,000 tanks and implemented more than 3,000 monitoring or early warning systems. In Italy, the company considers itself the market leader with a market share well above 50%. The company is also active with its own branches in Spain, Germany, Brazil, Austria, France and China.

Industrial Coatings - the market environment

The demand for industrial coatings and especially tank refurbishment is largely determined by government regulation, the number of existing tanks and their age.

METZLER

Capital Markets

Particularly in Europe, given the Net Zero targets, there is just little incentives to invest in new tanks to replace aging fossil fuel storage tanks. For Europe, we estimate the average age of underground storage tanks to be 27 years as the same surveyed and published for the U.S. by the Environmental Protection Agency there. In Europe, for example, it was only recently decided to phase out internal combustion engines by 2035. Conversely, however, this date also means that even in Europe there will still be demand for gasoline for the existing combustion engine fleet for probably around two decades. For China and Brazil, the IEA expects demand for fossil fuels to continue to rise in the medium term anyway. China and Brazil are not aiming for Net Zero until 2060. Overall, the market research institute Insights Global assumes a global growth at CAGR of around 4% for oil and gas tanks between 2021 and 2030.

Tanks are also used in the chemical, pharmaceutical and food industries. Wolftank provides its solutions - which are also suitable for foodstuffs - to companies in these industries. For example, Wolftank was able to win ADM Germany as a customer for the storage of vegetable oil.

Competitors

Competitors with similar technological know-how and comparable depth of added value (research into new epoxy resins, refurbishment services) in the tank refurbishment sector are rare. The Wolftank services competes primarily with tank replacement.

Our expectations for segment development

A trend toward stricter environmental regulation, the relatively high age of existing tank facilities, and opportunities to gain a further foothold in non-European countries and in other sectors lead us to expect mid-single-digit revenue growth for Wolftank in this segment. In 2020 and 2021, travel restrictions due to the Corona pandemic had a significant negative impact on revenue and earnings development. These effects are expected to reverse in the medium term as conditions normalize.

Financials

The IPO took place with a relatively weak equity ratio

Net debt is still at a relatively high level in relation to EBITDA

Wolftank's listing took place in January 2019. The company's equity ratio was around 18% in 2019. Equity ratio declined to around 15% in the following year, mainly due to acquisitions and consolidation effects. Two capital increases in 2021 of 10% improved company's balance sheet resulting in an equity ratio of 26% as of December 31, 2021. We assume that the company will be able to further improve the equity ratio to around 30% by 2025 via accumulated earnings.

METZLER

Capital Markets

Net debt amounted to around EUR 14 m in 2019, rising to EUR 20 m in 2020 due to the acquisitions and an annual loss, which was also due to corona. Positive cash flow and the two capital increases ensured a decrease in net debt to EUR 11 m in 2021. In 2022, we expect net debt to increase caused by the company plans to increase its inventories in hydrogen and LNG refueling facilities due to international supply chain disruptions. In the years from 2023 onwards, solid cash flow and a decline in working capital should lead to a rapid decrease in net debt.

| Balance sheet ratio | s relatively w | eak so far b | ut with pro | ospect of im | provement | | |
|--------------------------|----------------|--------------|-------------|--------------|-----------|-------|-------|
| in EURm | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022e | 2023e | 2024e | 2025e |
| Equity ratio (%) | 18.4 | 14.7 | 26.2 | 26.3 | 26.8 | 28.6 | 31.2 |
| Net debt | 13.8 | 19.8 | 11.4 | 14.0 | 9.0 | 3.0 | -3.0 |
| FCF | -3.0 | -1.5 | 2.6 | -2.6 | 5.0 | 6.0 | 6.0 |
| EBITDA | 4.6 | 0.3 | 1.5 | 5.2 | 6.6 | 8.2 | 9.4 |
| Net debt/EBITDA | 3.0 | 70.6 | 7.6 | 2.7 | 1.4 | 0.4 | -0.3 |
| Sources: Ploomborg, Motz | lor Posoarob | | | | | | |

Insights into the P&L

Comparisons of Wolftank's key financials over time are not very informative due to acquisitions and consolidation effects.

In 2021, the company's sales split by region were as follows:

| Sales split by region (2021) | |
|-------------------------------------|----|
| Italy | 79 |
| Spain | 5 |
| Austria | 3 |
| Germany | 2 |
| France | 1 |
| UK | 1 |
| Balkan | 1 |
| Other | 8 |
| Sources: Wolftank, Metzler Research | |

Personnel expenses were just below 17% of sales in 2021 and are expected to ease to a level at around 15% of sales from 2023.

In the tank coating sector, the company earns a trade margin on the raw materials (epoxy resins) and a margin on the services provided. The margins vary depending on the customer, the framework contract, the sector (oil & gas or food, etc.) and the country (Italy, Germany, France, etc.; also due to different legal requirements).

The price of a hydrogen refueling station depends on the performance, i.e.: How

| | fast can refueling be done and what break intervals are accepted. A simple con- tainer that can refuel 2-5 vehicles per day, with long refueling intervals, costs about EUR 750,000; a high-performance refueling station with 20 or more vehicles per day, with 10-minute intervals, costs about EUR 2.5 million. When setting up a hy- drogen refueling station, approximately half of the purchase price is for cost of goods (e.g. the HSF dispensers from EDC) and the other half is for Wolftank's ser- vices. |
|--|---|
| | Other operating expenses were relatively high in 2021. Various special items con- tributed to the increase compared to the previous year. These include a payment default of EUR 0.7 m due to the bankruptcy of an Italian customer and around EUR 0.7 m in expenses for the capital increases. |
| | The company's tax rate is approximately 25%. |
| | The company estimates its capex for the next few years at around EUR 1 m p.a. excluding the newly planned biogas activities. |
| Company outlook for FY 2022 | The company expects a 'positive business development' compared to the previous year. In particular, the top line should be well exceeded. On the earnings side, de- lay effects will probably still be seen, in particular due to a de facto absence of business in China and delays in construction permissions. |
| | The company continues to see a high level of interest in hydrogen refueling station infrastructure. However, delays in building permissions and funding commitments are delaying tangible order placements. For the industrial coating business, the company is aiming for growth, particularly in the chemical and food industries. |
| | The regional growth focus in 2022 will be primarily on Europe. |
| Current business situation | As of June 2022, the company reports inquiries for hydrogen refueling stations with an equivalent value of around EUR 140 million. In response to this inquiry, Wolftank has so far prepared offers with a value of around EUR 20 million. |
| | However, there are still only a few contracted orders for hydrogen refueling sta- tions. At the beginning of 2022, 52% of the order backlog was for Environmental Services, 15% for Industrial Coatings, 26% for LNG refueling stations and 3% for hydrogen refueling stations. |
| Our estimates - consolidation and catch-up effects in 2022; attractive growth opportunities in subsequent years | Hydrogen : In the Hydrogen segment, the company should be able to significantly increase its sales in the coming years and report disproportionate growth rates compared with Group sales. We expect demand for hydrogen infrastructure to increase. The cooperations with Molgas, Q8 and SNAM alone should, in our estimation, lead to the construction of 3 hydrogen refueling stations per year by 2024. We expect other refueling station orders from the municipal vehicle sector and company refueling facilities. We have not included potential revenues from the cooperation with SFC. For the TIM contract that is expected to be tendered soon and for which Wolftank wants to pitch together with SFC. About 3,500 control centers would have to be converted from diesel gensets to hydrogen fuel cell systems in the next 5-10 years with a revenue potential of about 50 to 100,000 EUR per system of which about 40% would be accounted for by Wolftank. |
| | LNG: In 2022, sales in the LNG segment should increase by approximately EUR 9 m, mainly due to the first-time consolidation of parts of Mares SrI (Mares generat- |

METZLER Capital Markets

company report

ed sales of EUR 20 m with these services last year). At the same time, however, projects are likely to be postponed due to the uncertainties surrounding the issues of gas supply and the price explosion for gas as a fuel. In our opinion, demand for refueling stations should return to normal next year as the gas supply situation becomes more transparent and alternatives to Russian gas are gradually developed. Under the cooperation with Q8, we estimate that around 10 LNG refueling stations should be built by Wolftank by 2024. With Molgas, 8 LNG refueling stations could be added by 2024. In the medium term, we expect growth of around 3% p.a.

Biogas: Wolftank wants to produce green hydrogen from bio-hydrocarbons by steam reforming as well as electrolysis. Wolftank also wants to produce Bio LNG by liquefaction of biomethane. Wolftank aims at an output of about 2000 kg H2/ day. We assume a sequential ramp-up of production to this level from 2023 to 2026.

Environmental Services: This area should benefit in 2022 from the consolidation of the remaining part of Mares Srl. amounting to approx. EUR 11 m. For the subsequent years, we expect organic growth of around 8% (CAGR 2022-2027), which is roughly in line with the market growth of the sector. Here, too, the Q8 cooperation should also have a positive impact in the longer term; for example, the closure of 10 conventional tank facilities is currently being planned.

Industrial coatings: These activities should be able to show relatively significant catch-up effects this year and the following year due to declining sales in the previous two years. Due to Wolftank's proven expertise in double-wall refurbishment, we expect medium-term growth to average around 5% p.a., slightly above market growth.

| Our segment estimates | | | | | | | |
|--|------------|-------------------|------|-------------------|-------|-------------------|------|
| in EURm | 2022e | 2023e | % | 2024e | % | 2025e | % |
| Hydrogen | | | | | | | |
| Revenues | 4 | 8 | 122 | 15 | 88 | 21 | 37 |
| EBITDA EBITDA margin (%) | 0.2 5.6 | 0.7 <i>8.8</i> | - | 1.4 <i>9.3</i> | 100.0 | 1.9 <i>9.2</i> | 35.7 |
| LNG | | | | | | | |
| Revenues | 15 | 18 | 23 | 19 | 3 | 20 | 3 |
| EBITDA EBITDA margin (%) | 0.9 6.0 | 1.2 6.5 | 33 | 1.4 7.4 | 16.7 | 1.6 <i>8.2</i> | 14.3 |
| Biogas | | | | | | | |
| Revenues | 0 | 1 | | 2 | 100 | 3 | 50 |
| EBITDA | 0.0 | 0.1 | | 0.2 | 260.0 | 0.3 | 55.6 |
| EBITDA margin (%) | | 5.0 | | 9.0 | | <u>9.3</u> | |
| Environmental Services | | | | | | | |
| Revenues | 34 | 36 | 8 | 39 | 8 | 42 | 8 |
| EBITDA | 2.5 | 2.9 | 16 | 3.4 | 17 | 3.7 | 9 |
| EBITDA margin (%) | 7.5 | 8.0 | | 8.7 | | 8.8 | |
| Industrial Coatings | | | | | | | |
| Revenues | 18 | 19 | 5 | 20 | 5 | 21 | 5 |
| EBITDA | 1.6 | 1.7 | 6 | 1.8 | 6 | 1.9 | 6 |
| Lon DA maigin (Ny | 0.0 | 3.0 | | 3.1 | | 0.2 | |
| GROUP | | | _ | | | | |
| Revenues | 70 | 83 | 18 7 | 95 | 15 | 106 | 11.6 |
| EBITDA | 5.2 | 6.6 | 26.0 | 8.2 | 24.9 | 9.4 | 14.7 |
| EBITDA margin (%) Sources: Wolftank Adisa, Metzler Research | 7.4 | 7.9 | | 8.6 | | 8.9 | |

| | Company history, management and shareholder structure |
|-----------------------|--|
| | Wolf Tankschutz was founded in 1987, with its roots in the remediation and contin- uous monitoring of tank farms and the cleaning and decontamination of contami- nated soil and groundwater. |
| | In 2014, a management buyout and the acquisition of the Swiss specialty resins producer ADISA AG took place. |
| | This was followed by acquisitions in the refurbishment sector in Italy (2016), Spain and Germany (2018) and the purchase of 33% of the Austrian hydrogen refueling equipment manufacturer EDC in 2021. |
| | Wolftank is divided into five business units, which are managed from the head- quarters in Innsbruck/Austria. |
| | Through subsidiaries in eight countries on three continents, Wolftank provides ser- vices to customers in over 20 countries. Since 2019, the Wolftank Group is a listed company. |
| The Supervisory Board | Markus Wenner, Chairman |
| | After studying law and working as a lawyer at Clifford Chance and as an invest- ment manager at GSM Industries, Markus Wenner became Managing Partner of the Munich-based consulting firm GCI in 1999. |
| | Dr. Andreas von Aufschnaiter, Vice Chairman |
| | After studying at the University of Innsbruck, Dr. Aufschneiter entered professional life as a consultant with Arthur Andersen in Vienna. In 1991, he joined the technology company MS Industrie and is now its CEO. |
| The Management Board | Dr. Peter Werth, CEO: |
| | After completing his engineering studies, doctorate and MBA, Dr. Werth took on leading positions at the Stuttgart-based drive technology specialist Hofer AG. In 2007, he joined the Executive Board of Wolftank AG, where he became Chairman in 2014. |
| | Dr. Matteo Ciarapica, COO |
| | Matteo Ciarapica has been heading the operating business as Group COO together with Peter Werth since 2022. His additional functions include managing the Italian subsidiary, which he has headed since 2020 when he joined as CEO. He previously held senior sales and business development positions with refueling stations manufacturer Wayne Dresser. |
| | Christian Pukljak, CFO |
| | Christian Pukljak has assumed the duties of Group CFO in 2022. Previously, Pukl- jak, who is a trained and practicing tax advisor, worked in Controlling at the hold- ing company for almost 5 years. |

METZLER

Capital Markets



Shareholder structure

The free float of the company amounts to 49%.

Wolftank's shareholder structure



Valuation

| | Wolftank's 'traditional' tank activities a the current valuation; opportunities fro yet seem adequately reflected | lready justify large parts of m hydrogen activities do not |
|---|--|---|
| | We use absolute and relative valuation method tank shares. We use a discounted cash flow (D method. | is to calculate the fair value of Wolf- OCF) model as our absolute valuation |
| Our relative valuation includes a sum- of-the-parts approach | We compare the company's environmental ser nesses with its waste management peers GFL (Germany). | vices and industrial coatings busi- Environment (USA) and Befesa |
| | We compare Wolftank's alternative fuels (LNG) (engineering consulting), US Clean Energy (des ural gas refueling stations) and German GEA (t refrigeration technology). | activities with Swedish SWECO sign, building and operation of nat- echnology, mechanical equipment, |
| | Wolftank's hydrogen and biogas businesses ar greatest growth potential. We compare the Bio erators 7C Solarparken and Encavis. And the H and French electrolyzer and hydrogen station r PHY Energy, and the German fuel cell specialis | e still in their infancy, but feature the ogas business to the renewables op- lydrogen business to the Norwegian manufacturers NEL ASA and MC- st SFC Energy. |
| We derive a fair value of EUR 25.8 per share | Based on the results of our absolute and relative tank is EUR 25.8 per share. | ve valuations, the fair value of Wolf- |
| | Our share price target is derived from the me | an of the two valuation models |
| | in EUR | Estimated fair value |
| | Sum-of-the-parts DCF model Average Source: Metzler Research | 25.7 25.9 25.8 |
| | | |

Our DCF model

As a first step, we value shares in Wolftank using our DCF model.

| | Fore | cast perio | d | | Tran | sition per | iod | | TV |
|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|-------|-------|-------------|--------------|---------|-------|-------|
| DCF (EURm) | 2022e | 2023e | 2024e | 2025e | 2026e | 2027e | 2028e | 2029e | 2030e |
| Sales | 70 | 83 | 95 | 103 | 113 | 123 | 134 | 146 | 147 |
| Sales growth (%) | 57 | 17.7 | 14.9 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 1 |
| Operating margin (%) | 3.3 | 4.9 | 6.1 | 6.0 | 6.0 | 6.0 | 6.0 | 6.0 | 5 |
| EBIT | 2.3 | 4.1 | 5.8 | 6.2 | 6.8 | 7.4 | 8.0 | 8.8 | 7.4 |
| Taxes | 0.2 | 0.7 | 1.1 | 1.5 | 1.7 | 1.8 | 2.0 | 2.2 | 1.8 |
| Tax rate (%) | 25.0 | 25.0 | 25.0 | 25 | 25 | 25 | 25 | 25 | 25 |
| NOPAT | 2.1 | 3.4 | 4.7 | 4.6 | 5.1 | 5.5 | 6.0 | 6.6 | 5.5 |
| Depreciation & Amortisation | 2.9 | 2.5 | 2.4 | 2.6 | 2.9 | 3.1 | 3.4 | 3.7 | 2.5 |
| Operating cash flow to EV | 5.0 | 5.9 | 7.1 | 7.3 | 7.9 | 8.7 | 9.4 | 10.3 | 8.0 |
| Capital expenditure | 1.2 | 1.5 | 1.7 | 1.5 | 1.7 | 1.8 | 2.0 | 2.2 | 1.5 |
| Free cash flow | 3.8 | 4.4 | 5.4 | 5.7 | 6.3 | 6.8 | 7.4 | 8.1 | 6.6 |
| Discounted free cash flow | 3.7 | 4.1 | 4.7 | 4.8 | 4.9 | 5.1 | 5.2 | 5.4 | |
| Sum of DCF | 38 | | | | Our assur | nptions | | | |
| Terminal value | 92 | | | | Sales grow | th (%), TV | year | | 1.0 |
| Enterprise value | 130 | | | | Operating r | nargin (%), | TV year | | 5 |
| Net Debt (incl. pension provisions) | 14 | | | | Tax rate (% | b), years 3- | 7 | | 25 |
| Minorities | 2 | | | | Beta | | | | 1.1 |
| Equity value | 113 | | | | LT debt int | erest rate | (%) | | 5 |
| Number of shares (m) | 4.4 | | | | Risk Free F | late (%) | | | 1 |
| Value per share | 25.9 | | | | Market Ris | k Premium | (%) | | 6 |
| Source: Metzler Research | | | | | | | | | |

The DCF model is very sensitive to changes in the variables applied, in particular to the terminal growth rate and long-term EBIT margin.

Sensitivity analysis of estimated fair value to terminal sales growth and longterm EBIT margin

| Terminal sales growth rate (in %) | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|------------|------|------|------|------|------|------|------|--|--|--|
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 0.00 | 0.25 | 0.60 | 1.00 | 1.25 | 1.60 | 1.75 | | | |
| Long-term | 3.00 | 16.1 | 16.7 | 17.3 | 18.8 | 19.7 | 20.7 | 21.8 | | | |
| EBIT margir | 4.00 | 18.9 | 19.7 | 20.5 | 22.4 | 23.5 | 24.7 | 26.1 | | | |
| (in %) | 5.00 | 21.8 | 22.7 | 23.6 | 25.9 | 27.2 | 28.7 | 30.4 | | | |
| | 6.00 | 24.6 | 25.7 | 26.8 | 29.4 | 31.0 | 32.7 | 34.7 | | | |
| | 7.00 | 27.5 | 28.6 | 29.9 | 33.0 | 34.7 | 36.7 | 39.0 | | | |
| | 8.00 | 30.3 | 31.6 | 33.1 | 36.5 | 38.5 | 40.7 | 43.2 | | | |
| Source: Metzle | r Research | 1 | | | | | | | | | |

Our sum-of-the-parts model

For our relative valuation, we compare Wolftank to its peer groups on the basis of enterprise value (EV/EBITDA 2024e). Except for the hydrogen business. Here we apply an EV/sales multiplier.

The Environmental Services peers trade at 7x EV/EBITDA 2024e on average, the Engineering peers trade at 8.5x and the Renewables peers at 11.7x.

The Hydrogen peers are currently trading at 4.5x EV/sales 2024e.

Wolftank is trading at 9.2x EV/EBITDA 2024e and at 0.8x EV/Sales 2024e.

| Sum-of-the-parts valuation reveals upside | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|--------------------------------|---|--|--|--|----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Environmental services and industrial coatings | EBITDA 2024e (in EURm) | Peers Befesa GFL Environmental Inc. | Bloomberg Ric BFSA GY GFL US | Share price 02.09.2022 (in local currency) 39 29 | EV/EBITDA 2024e peers 5.9 8.2 | Fair EV (in EURm) | | | | | |
| | 5.2 | | | | 7.0 | 36.6 | | | | | |
| LNG | EBITDA 2024e (in EURm) | Peers | Bloomberg Ric SWECBSS | Share price 02.09.2022 (in local currency) 99 | EV/EBITDA 2024e peers 9 5 | | | | | | |
| | 14 | Clean Energy Fuels Corp. GEA | CLNE US G1A GY | 6 33 | 9.0 7.1 | 12.0 | | | | | |
| | 1.4 | | | Sharaprica | 0.0 | 12.0 | | | | | |
| Biogas | EBITDA 2024e (in EURm) | Peers | Bloomberg Ric | 02.09.2022 (in local currency) | EV/EBITDA 2024e peers | | | | | | |
| | | 7C Solarparken Encavis | HRPK GY ECV GY | 5 21 | 9.9 13.4 | | | | | | |
| | 0.2 | | | | 11.7 | 2.1 | | | | | |
| Hydrogen | Sales 2024e (in EURm) | Peers NEL ASA MCPHY Energy | Bloomberg Ric NEL NO MCPHY FP | Share price 02.09.2022 (in local currency) 14 12 | EV/Sales 2024e peers 7.8 3.8 | | | | | | |
| | | SFCEnergy | F3C GY | 21 | 1.9 | | | | | | |
| | 15.0 | | | | 4.5 | 67.2 | | | | | |
| TOTAL fair EV (i Net debt 2024e (in Minorities (in EURm Fair Mcap (in EURm | i n EURm) EURm) վ | | | | | 118 3 2 112 | | | | | |
| Fair value per s | hare (in EUR) | | | | | 25.7 | | | | | |
| Source: Metzler Re | esearch | | | | | | | | | | |

Based on our sum-of-the-parts model, we calculate a fair value per Wolftank share of EUR 25.7.

Balance sheet

| (in EUR m) | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
|--------------------------------------|------|-------|------|-------|------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Assets | 44 | 7.8 | 51 | 15.2 | 62 | 21.1 | 66 | 6.5 | 64 | -3.5 | 61 | -3.9 |
| Fixed assets | 12 | 1.6 | 17 | 45.6 | 20 | 20.1 | 22 | 7.1 | 22 | 2.3 | 22 | 1.4 |
| Intangible fixed assets | 5 | -3.4 | 7 | 57.8 | 9 | 23.2 | 10 | 10.9 | 10 | 5.1 | 10 | 1.0 |
| Goodwill | 3 | 0.4 | 5 | 76.6 | 7 | 31.2 | 8 | 13.0 | 8 | 6.3 | 8 | 0.0 |
| Other intangible assets | 2 | -10.1 | 2 | 20.4 | 2 | -0.2 | 2 | 2.9 | 2 | 0.0 | 2 | 5.3 |
| Tangible assets | 6 | -0.1 | 9 | 36.8 | 11 | 22.9 | 11 | 3.6 | 11 | 0.0 | 11 | 1.8 |
| Technical plant and equipment | 2 | -26.0 | 4 | 117.2 | 4 | 4.2 | 4 | 3.7 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 2.3 |
| Financial assets | 1 | 101.7 | 1 | 44.8 | 1 | -27.1 | 1 | 11.5 | 1 | 0.0 | 1 | 0.0 |
| Other financial assets | 1 | 251.0 | 1 | 55.6 | 1 | -31.3 | 1 | 9.3 | 1 | 0.0 | 1 | 0.0 |
| Current assets | 32 | 11.7 | 32 | 0.4 | 40 | 22.9 | 43 | 7.0 | 40 | -6.6 | 37 | -7.0 |
| Inventories | 6 | 10.9 | 5 | -11.0 | 6 | 3.8 | 6 | 0.8 | 6 | -3.5 | 6 | 3.6 |
| Receivables and other assets | 22 | 9.9 | 24 | 8.4 | 27 | 12.1 | 30 | 10.5 | 26 | -10.2 | 24 | -11.3 |
| Cash and cash items | 4 | 22.5 | 3 | -25.6 | 7 | 139.8 | 7 | -1.6 | 8 | 5.5 | 8 | 0.0 |
| Deferred taxes | 0 | -44.5 | 2 | 293.7 | 2 | -2.7 | 2 | -11.8 | 2 | 0.0 | 2 | 0.0 |
| Shareholders' equity and liabilities | 44 | 7.7 | 51 | 15.3 | 62 | 21.0 | 66 | 6.5 | 63 | -3.5 | 61 | -3.9 |
| Shareholders' equity | 8 | 164.1 | 8 | -7.7 | 16 | 115.2 | 16 | 0.5 | 17 | 3.1 | 18 | 8.9 |
| Subscribed capital | 1 | 13.2 | 1 | 2.7 | 4 | 264.2 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 |
| Reserves | 7 | 210.9 | 5 | -32.1 | 10 | 105.9 | 10 | 0.0 | 10 | 5.3 | 12 | 15.0 |
| Minority interests | 0 | 240.7 | 2 | 817.4 | 2 | 35.3 | 2 | 3.8 | 2 | 0.0 | 2 | 0.0 |
| Outside capital | 36 | -4.9 | 43 | 18.8 | 45 | 5.2 | 49 | 9.2 | 46 | -5.7 | 42 | -8.7 |
| Liabilities | 35 | -3.3 | 41 | 18.1 | 43 | 5.1 | 47 | 9.7 | 44 | -6.1 | 40 | -9.0 |
| Financial debt | 16 | 0.8 | 16 | 1.7 | 13 | -18.8 | 17 | 31.0 | 14 | -17.2 | 10 | -28.6 |
| Accounts payable, trade | 15 | -10.1 | 14 | -3.6 | 20 | 37.0 | 20 | 0.9 | 20 | -2.5 | 20 | 0.0 |
| Other liabilities | 4 | 10.0 | 11 | 156.5 | 11 | -2.5 | 10 | -0.1 | 11 | 4.8 | 11 | 0.0 |
| Deferred taxes liabilities | 0 | -14.6 | 1 | 342.2 | 1 | -17.5 | 0 | -31.9 | 0 | 0.0 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Balance sheet total | 44 | 7.8 | 51 | 15.2 | 62 | 21.1 | 66 | 6.5 | 64 | -3.5 | 61 | -3.9 |

Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research

Profit & loss account

| (in EUR m) | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
|---|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Sales | 52 | 16.3 | 35 | -32.4 | 45 | 27.4 | 70 | 57.1 | 82 | 17.7 | 95 | 14.9 |
| Change in finished goods and | na | na | na | na | na | na | na | na | na | na | na | na |
| work in progress | n.a. | n.a. | 11.0. | n.a. | 11.0. | 11.a. | 11.4. | n.a. | 11.0. | n.a. | n.a. | |
| Own work capitalised | -2 | n.m. | -1 | 66.2 | 1 | 286.1 | 0 | -100.0 | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. |
| Total output | 50 | 12.5 | 34 | -31.2 | 46 | 33.3 | 70 | 53.0 | 82 | 17.7 | 95 | 14.9 |
| Other operating income | 1 | -52.5 | 1 | 65.9 | 1 | 19.5 | 0 | -100.0 | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. |
| Operating expenses | 49 | 11.7 | 37 | -24.4 | 48 | 30.0 | 68 | 39.9 | 78 | 15.7 | 89 | 13.5 |
| Cost of materials | 35 | -1.1 | 24 | -30.8 | 30 | 23.5 | 48 | 59.7 | 58 | 19.4 | 66 | 14.9 |
| Personnel expenses | 6 | 37.2 | 7 | 10.6 | 8 | 10.4 | 10 | 32.7 | 12 | 15.2 | 14 | 15.7 |
| Depreciation and amortization | 3 | 91.3 | 2 | -36.7 | 3 | 36.8 | 3 | 2.0 | 2 | -13.8 | 2 | -4.0 |
| Write-downs on intang. fixed as- sets and tang. assets | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. |
| Other operating expenses | 4 | 110.7 | 4 | -14.8 | 8 | 110.1 | 6 | -17.8 | 6 | 1.6 | 6 | 3.2 |
| EBIT | 1 | -20.5 | -2 | -236.5 | -1 | 25.4 | 2 | 271.5 | 4 | 76.1 | 6 | 42.7 |
| Financial result | -1 | -3.0 | -1 | -30.9 | -1 | -35.8 | -1 | 7.9 | -1 | 0.0 | -1 | 0.0 |
| Income from investments | 0 | -62.5 | 0 | -38.9 | 0 | 18.2 | 0 | 976.9 | 0 | 0.0 | 0 | 0.0 |
| Interest income (net) | -1 | 1.0 | -1 | 1.1 | -1 | -47.2 | -1 | -0.9 | -1 | 0.0 | -1 | 0.0 |
| Result of ordinary activities | 1 | -41.1 | -3 | -648.9 | -3 | 2.9 | 1 | 135.8 | 3 | 176.8 | 4 | 63.1 |
| EBT | 1 | -41.1 | -3 | -648.9 | -3 | 2.9 | 1 | 135.8 | 3 | 176.8 | 4 | 63.1 |
| Taxes on income | 0 | -3.4 | -1 | -218.5 | 0 | 127.7 | 0 | 49.8 | 1 | 205.9 | 1 | 66.5 |
| Tax rate (%) | 83.5 | 64.1 | 18.0 | -78.4 | -5.1 | -128.5 | 21.5 | 518.0 | 23.7 | 10.5 | 24.2 | 2.1 |
| Net income | 0 | -80.2 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -24.5 | 1 | 121.9 | 2 | 205.9 | 3 | 66.5 |
| Minority interests | 0 | 157.8 | -0 | -191.5 | 0 | 142.4 | 0 | 308.2 | 0 | 5.0 | 0 | 4.8 |
| Minority rate (%) | 147.7 | 392.4 | 5.0 | -96.6 | -1.7 | -134.0 | 31.4 | n.m. | 10.8 | -65.7 | 6.8 | -37.1 |
| Net Income after minorities | -0 | -106.3 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -33.3 | 0 | 114.8 | 2 | 297.7 | 3 | 74.0 |
| Unappropriated consolidated net income | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. |
| Adjustment calculation | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net Income after minorities | -0 | -106.3 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -33.3 | 0 | 114.8 | 2 | 297.7 | 3 | 74.0 |
| Adjustments of net income | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. |
| Adjustment rate (%) | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. |
| Adj. net income after minorities | -0 | -106.3 | -2 | n.m. | -3 | -33.3 | 0 | 114.8 | 2 | 297.7 | 3 | 74.0 |
| Number of shares outstanding | 1 | 0.0 | 1 | 2.7 | 4 | 264.3 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 | 4 | 0.0 |
| EPS (EUR) | -0.03 | -106.3 | -1.84 | n.m. | -0.67 | 63.4 | 0.10 | 114.8 | 0.40 | 297.7 | 0.69 | 74.0 |
| EPS adj. (EUR) | -0.03 | -106.3 | -1.84 | n.m. | -0.67 | 63.4 | 0.10 | 114.8 | 0.40 | 297.7 | 0.69 | 74.0 |

Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research



Cash flow/ratios/valuation

| | 2019 | % | 2020 | % | 2021 | % | 2022e | % | 2023e | % | 2024e | % |
|--|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|-------|-------|--------|-------|--------|-------|-------|
| Cash Flow/ Net Debt (in EUR m) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Gross Cash Flow | -1 | -157.9 | -0 | 94.7 | 5 | n.m. | 4 | -26.7 | 4 | 25.2 | 6 | 26.4 |
| Increase in working capital | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 0 | n.a. | 5 | n.a. | -2 | -140.0 | -2 | 0.0 |
| Capital expenditures | 2 | n.a. | 1 | n.a. | 2 | n.a. | 1 | n.a. | 2 | n.a. | 2 | n.a. |
| D+A/Capex (%) | 177.5 | n.a. | 148.5 | n.a. | 123.7 | n.a. | 241.7 | n.a. | 166.7 | n.a. | 141.2 | n.a. |
| Free cash flow (Metzler definition) | -3 | -379.0 | -1 | 51.2 | 3 | 277.7 | -3 | -200.7 | 5 | 291.0 | 6 | 19.8 |
| Free cash flow yield (%) | n.a. | n.a. | -13.8 | n.a. | 3.3 | n.a. | -3.6 | n.a. | 7.0 | n.a. | 8.3 | n.a. |
| Dividend paid | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. | n.a. |
| Free cash flow (post dividend) | 2 | -32.1 | -5 | -382.4 | 11 | 321.9 | -3 | -124.7 | 5 | 291.0 | 6 | 19.8 |
| Net Debt incl. Provisions | 14 | -4.0 | 20 | 43.7 | 11 | -42.4 | 14 | 22.9 | 9 | -35.6 | 3 | -66.3 |
| Gearing (%) | 168.8 | n.a. | 262.9 | n.a. | 70.4 | n.a. | 86.1 | n.a. | 53.8 | n.a. | 16.7 | n.a. |
| Net debt/EBITDA | 3.0 | n.a. | 70.6 | n.a. | 7.6 | n.a. | 2.7 | n.a. | 1.4 | n.a. | 0.4 | n.a. |
| Ratios (in %) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Liquidity | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Quick ratio | 246.3 | n.a. | 121.2 | n.a. | 145.6 | n.a. | 160.4 | n.a. | 152.4 | n.a. | 139.1 | n.a. |
| Current ratio | 304.0 | n.a. | 145.7 | n.a. | 169.7 | n.a. | 185.2 | n.a. | 176.9 | n.a. | 164.4 | n.a. |
| Pay-out ratio | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. |
| Balance sheet structure | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Equity/total assets | 18.4 | n.a. | 14.7 | n.a. | 26.2 | n.a. | 24.7 | n.a. | 26.4 | n.a. | 30.0 | n.a. |
| Equity to fixed assets | 68.7 | n.a. | 34.5 | n.a. | 68.5 | n.a. | 64.0 | n.a. | 64.8 | n.a. | 70.6 | n.a. |
| Long-term capital to total assets | 32.2 | n.a. | 28.4 | n.a. | 38.6 | n.a. | 42.8 | n.a. | 40.6 | n.a. | 38.2 | n.a. |
| Long-term capital to fixed assets and inventories | 80.6 | n.a. | 64.9 | n.a. | 92.0 | n.a. | 102.8 | n.a. | 93.1 | n.a. | 82.6 | n.a. |
| Liabilities to equity (leverage) | 427.2 | n.a. | 546.6 | n.a. | 266.9 | n.a. | 291.2 | n.a. | 265.2 | n.a. | 221.6 | n.a. |
| Profitability/efficiency | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Working capital to sales | 20.5 | n.a. | 37.0 | n.a. | 21.8 | n.a. | 12.4 | n.a. | 10.9 | n.a. | 7.6 | n.a. |
| EBIT margin | 2.5 | n.a. | -5.1 | n.a. | -3.0 | n.a. | 3.3 | n.a. | 4.9 | n.a. | 6.1 | n.a. |
| EBITDA margin | 8.9 | n.a. | 0.8 | n.a. | 3.4 | n.a. | 7.4 | n.a. | 7.9 | n.a. | 8.6 | n.a. |
| Net ROS | -0.1 | n.a. | -6.3 | n.a. | -6.6 | n.a. | 0.6 | n.a. | 2.1 | n.a. | 3.2 | n.a. |
| Cash flow margin | -2.2 | n.a. | -0.2 | n.a. | 11.0 | n.a. | 5.1 | n.a. | 5.4 | n.a. | 6.0 | n.a. |
| ROE (after Tax/Min.) | -0.7 | n.a. | -32.2 | n.a. | -30.0 | n.a. | 3.2 | n.a. | 12.3 | n.a. | 20.0 | n.a. |
| Productivity | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Average number of employees ('000) | 0.2 | 7.4 | 0.2 | 4.7 | 0.2 | 18.6 | 0.3 | 20.8 | 0.3 | 6.0 | 0.3 | 5.2 |
| Sales per employee (EUR '000) | 284.0 | 8.4 | 183.3 | -35.4 | 197.0 | 7.5 | 256.3 | 30.1 | 284.5 | 11.0 | 310.8 | 9.3 |
| EBIT per employee (EUR '000) | 7.2 | -25.9 | -9.4 | -230.4 | -5.9 | 37.1 | 8.4 | 242.0 | 14.0 | 66.1 | 19.0 | 35.7 |
| Valuation | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| PER adj. | n.a. | n.a. | -4.8 | n.a. | -26.8 | n.a. | 163.7 | n.a. | 41.2 | n.a. | 23.7 | n.a. |
| PBV | 0.0 | n.a. | 1.8 | n.a. | 5.7 | n.a. | 5.2 | n.a. | 5.0 | n.a. | 4.5 | n.a. |
| EV/EBITDA | 3.0 | n.a. | 108.4 | n.a. | 60.4 | n.a. | 16.5 | n.a. | 12.3 | n.a. | 9.1 | n.a. |
| EV/EBIT | 10.4 | n.a. | -16.9 | n.a. | -67.6 | n.a. | 37.2 | n.a. | 19.9 | n.a. | 12.9 | n.a. |
| Dividend yield (%) | n.a. | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. | 0.0 | n.a. |

Sources: Bloomberg, Metzler Research

Disclosures

Recommendation history

Recommendations for each financial instrument or issuer - mentioned in this document - published by Metzler in the past twelve months

METZLER

Capital Markets

| Date of dissemi- nation | Metzler recomme Previous | endation * Current | Current price ** | Price target * | Author *** |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------|------------------|----------------|----------------------|
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | GEA Group (D | E0006602006) | | |
| 10.08.2022 | Buy | Buy | 35.72 EUR | 47.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 11.07.2022 | Buy | Buy | 33.69 EUR | 47.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 06.05.2022 | Buy | Buy | 36.49 EUR | 47.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 12.04.2022 | Buy | Buy | 36.54 EUR | 47.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 14.03.2022 | Buy | Buy | 36.35 EUR | 47.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 19.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | 44.88 EUR | 53.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| 05.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | 43.61 EUR | 46.00 EUR | Bauer, Stephan |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | SFC Energy (D | E0007568578) | | |
| 20.07.2022 | Buy | Buy | 20.35 EUR | 34.00 EUR | Neuberger, Alexander |
| 28.03.2022 | Buy | Buy | 26.75 EUR | 36.00 EUR | Neuberger, Alexander |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Traton (DE000 | TRAT0N7) | | |
| 24.01.2022 | Buy | Buy | 22.44 EUR | 33.00 EUR | Pieper, Jürgen |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (D |)E0007664039) | | |
| 14.03.2022 | Buy | Buy | 143.70 EUR | 320.00 EUR | Pieper, Jürgen |
| 28.02.2022 | Buy | Buy | 185.32 EUR | 320.00 EUR | Pieper, Jürgen |
| 01.02.2022 | Buy | Buy | 183.32 EUR | 320.00 EUR | Pieper, Jürgen |
| 03.12.2021 | Buy | Buy | 166.56 EUR | 320.00 EUR | Pieper, Jürgen |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S1865186321) | | |
| 25.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S1865186677) | | |
| 22.06.2022 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| 25.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S1910948162) | | |
| 22.06.2022 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| 25.11.2021 | n.a. | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S1910948329) | | |
| 25.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S1910948675) | | |
| 22.06.2022 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S2234567233) | | |
| 22.06.2022 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| 25.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S2234567662) | | |
| 25.11.2021 | Buy | Buy | | | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial | Instrument (ISIN): | Volkswagen (X | (S2491738352) | | |

| Date of dissemi- nation | Metzler recomme Previous | ndatio Curre | n * Current price ** Price target * Author *** ent |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|--|
| 22.06.2022 | n.a. | Buy | Rack, Juliane |
| Issuer/Financial I | nstrument (ISIN): ' | Volksv | vagen (XS2491738949) |
| 22.06.2022 | n.a. | Buy | Rack, Juliane |
| | | * *** SFC 13. | Effective until the price target and/or investment recommendation is updated (FI/FX recommendations are valid solely at the time of publication) XETRA trading price at the close of the previous day unless stated otherwise herein All authors are financial analysts Energy Metzler, a company affiliated with Metzler and/or a person that has worked on compiling this report has reached an agreement with the is- suer relating to the production of investment recommendations. |
| | | Wol | ftank-Adisa |
| | | 13. | Metzler, a company affiliated with Metzler and/or a person that has worked on compiling this report has reached an agreement with the is- suer relating to the production of investment recommendations. |

Compiled: September 05, 2022 08:10 AM CEST Initial release: September 05, 2022 08:10 AM CEST METZLER

Capital Markets

Disclaimer

This document has been prepared by B. Metzler seel. Sohn & Co. AG (Metzler) and is addressed exclusively to eligible counterparties and professional clients. It is thus not suitable for retail clients.

This document is based on information which is generally available and which Metzler believes to be fundamentally reliable. Metzler has not verified the accuracy or completeness of the information, however, and thus provides no warranty or representation in respect of the accuracy or completeness of the information, opinions, estimates, recommendations and forecasts contained in this document. Neither Metzler nor any of its shareholders or employees are liable for damage or any other disadvantage suffered due to inaccurate or incomplete information, opinions, estimates, recommendations or forecasts as a result of the distribution or use of or in connection to this document.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer to buy or solicitation of any offer to buy securities, other financial instruments or other investment instruments. Neither does it take account of the particular investment objectives, financial situation or needs of individual recipients nor does it constitute personal investment advice. Metzler does not act as investment advisor or portfolio manager in preparing and publishing this document. Recipients must make their own investment decisions in accordance with their specific financial situation and investment objectives, based on independent processes and analyses, taking sales or other prospectuses, information memoranda and other investor information into account, and consult with an independent financial advisor where necessary. Recipients should note that any information regarding past performance should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance and should therefore not form the basis of any decision whether or not to invest in any financial instruments.

The information, opinions, estimates, recommendations and forecasts contained in this document reflect the personal views of the author at the time of publication on the financial instruments or issuers that form the subject of this document and do not necessarily reflect the opinions of Metzler, the issuer or third parties. They may also be subject to change on account of future events and developments. Metzler has no obligation to amend, supplement or update this document or to otherwise notify recipients in the event that any information, opinions, estimates, recommendations or forecasts stated herein should change or subsequently become inaccurate, incomplete or misleading. The model calculations contained in this document, if any, are examples showing the possible performance and are based on various assumptions (e.g. regarding earnings and volatility). The actual performance may be higher or lower, depending on market trends and on the correctness of assumptions underlying the model calculations. Accordingly, actual performance cannot be guaranteed, warranted or assured.

Recipients should assume that (a) Metzler is entitled to acquire orders for investment banking, securities or other services from or with companies which form the subject of research publications and that (b) analysts who were involved in preparing research publications may, within the scope of regulatory laws, be indirectly involved in the acquisition of such orders.

Metzler and its employees may hold positions in securities of the companies analysed or in other investment objects or may conduct transactions with such securities or investment objects.

This document is provided for information purposes only and may not be copied, duplicated, forwarded to third parties or otherwise published, in whole or in part, without Metzler's written consent. Metzler reserves all copyrights and rights of use, including those relating to electronic media. Insofar as Metzler provides hyperlinks to websites of the companies cited in research publications, this does not mean that Metzler confirms, recommends or warrants any data contained on the linked sites or data which can be accessed from such sites. Metzler accepts no liability for links or data, nor for any consequences which may arise as a result of following the links and/or using the data.

This document is subject to the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany. Venue of jurisdiction for any disputes shall be Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

By accepting this document the recipient declares his/her agreement with the above provisions.

Information in accordance with Regulation (EU) No. 596/2014, Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2016/958 and section 85 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act (Wertpapier-handelsgesetz)

Persons responsible for this document

The company responsible for preparing this document is B. Metzler seel. Sohn & Co. AG, Untermainanlage 1, 60329 Frankfurt am Main, Germany, which is subject to supervision by the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (*Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht;* BaFin), Marie-Curie-Straße 24–28, 60439 Frankfurt/Main, Germany, and by the European Central Bank (ECB), Sonnemannstraße 20, 60314 Frankfurt/Main, Germany.

Key information sources

The sources of information referred to when preparing research publications include publications by national and international media, the European Central Bank and other public authorities, information services (such as Reuters and Bloomberg), the financial press, published statistics, information published by rating agencies, annual reports and other information provided by the issuers.

Valuation criteria and methods

Valuations are based on standard and acknowledged methods of fundamental and technical analysis (e.g. DCF model, peer-group analysis, sum-of-the-parts model, relativevalue analysis). The valuation models are affected by macro-economic values such as interest rates, exchange rates, commodities prices and economic performance, as well as by market sentiments. Detailed information on the valuation principles and methods used by Metzler and the assumptions on which they are based is available at: www.metzler.com/disclaimer-capital-markets-en.

Sensitivity of valuation parameters; risks

The figures on which the company valuations are based are date-specific estimates and thus carry inherent risks. They may be adjusted at any time without prior notice.

Irrespective of the valuation principles and methods used and the assumptions on which they are based, there is always a risk that a particular price target is not achieved or that the assumptions and forecasts prove inaccurate. This can, for instance, be the result of unexpected changes in demand, management, technology, economic or political developments, interest rates, costs, the competitive situation, the legal situation and other factors. Investments in foreign markets and instruments are subject to additional risks, as a result of changes in exchange rates or in the economic, political or social situation, for instance. This outline of risks makes no claim to be exhaustive.

Definition of categories for investment recommendations

The categories for investment recommendations in research publications by Metzler have the following meanings:

Shares:

| BUY HOLD | The price of the analysed financial instrument is expected to rise in the next 12 months. The price of the analysed financial instrument is expected to largely remain stable in the next 12 months. |
|-------------|---|
| SELL | The price of the analysed financial instrument is expected to fall in the next 12 months. |
| Bonds: | |
| BUY | The analysed financial instrument is expected to perform better than similar financial instruments. |
| HOLD | The analysed financial instrument is not expected to perform significantly better or worse than similar financial instruments. |
| SELL | The analysed financial instrument is expected to perform worse than similar financial instruments. |

Summary of investment recommendations

A list of all investment recommendations for each financial instrument or issuer published by Metzler in the past twelve months can be found at www.metzler.com/disclaimercapital-markets-en.

The quarterly quotation of the number of all investment recommendations given as "buy", "hold", "sell" or similar for the past 12 months as a proportion of the total number of investment recommendations made by Metzler and the quotation of the proportion of these categories relating to issuers to whom Metzler has provided services within the meaning of Annex I sections A and B of Regulation 2014/65/EU within the past 12 months can be accessed and downloaded at www.metzler.com/disclaimer-capital-markets-en.

Planned updates of this document

This document reflects the opinion of the respective author at the time of its preparation. Any changes of factors can cause information, opinions, estimates, recommendations and forecasts contained in this document to cease to be accurate. No decision has as yet been taken as to whether, and if so when, this document will be updated. If an investment recommendation is updated, the updated investment recommendation replaces the previous investment recommendation upon publication.

Compliance arrangements; conflicts of interest

All analysts are bound by Metzler's internal compliance regulations which ensure that the research publications are prepared in accordance with statutory and regulatory provisions. The analysts are classified as working in a confidential sector and are thus required to observe the resulting statutory and regulatory provisions. This is monitored on a regular basis by the Compliance department and external auditors. The Compliance department ensures that potential conflicts of interest do not affect the original result of the analysis. Metzler has a binding Conflicts of Interest Policy in place which ensures that relevant conflicts of interest within Metzler, the Metzler Group, the analysts and staff of Metzler's Capital Markets division and persons associated with them are avoided or, if they cannot be avoided, are appropriately identified, managed, disclosed and monitored. A detailed description of Metzler's policy for avoiding conflicts of interest is available at www.metzler.com/disclaimer-capital-markets-en.

Details of the conflicts of interests to be disclosed under regulatory requirements are published at www.metzler.com/disclosures-en.

Remuneration

The remuneration of the Metzler staff members and other persons involved in preparing this document is in no way, either in whole or in any variable part, directly or materially linked to transactions in securities services or other transactions processed by Metzler.

Prices

All prices for financial instruments stated in this document are, unless otherwise stated, closing prices for the trading day preceding the respective stated publication date on the market which we regard as the most liquid market for the respective financial instrument.

Scope of application

This document was prepared in the Federal Republic of Germany in line with the legal provisions valid there. It may therefore be possible that this document does not comply with all provisions relating to the preparation of such documents in other countries.

<u>METZLER</u> Capital Markets

| Metzler Capital Markets B. Metzler seel. Sohn & Co. AG Untermainanlage 1 60329 Frankfurt/Main, Germany Phone +49 69 2104-extension Fax +49 69 2104-679 www.metzler.com | | Mario Mattera | Head of Capital Mar | rkets |
|--|---------------------|--------------------------|---------------------|-------|
| | | | | |
| Research Fax +49 69 283159 | Pascal Spano | Head of Research | | 4365 |
| | Guido Hoymann | Head of Equity Resear | ch | 398 |
| | | Transport, Utilities/Ren | | |
| | Stephan Bauer | Industrial Technology | | 4363 |
| | Tom Diedrich | Media, Retail | 239 | |
| | Alexander Neuberger | Industrial Technology, | Small/Mid Caps | 4366 |
| | Jochen Schmitt | Financials, Real Estate | | 4359 |
| | David Varga | Basic Resources | | 4362 |
| | Jürgen Pieper | Automobiles, Senior A | dvisor | 529 |
| | Uwe Hohmann | Equity Strategy | | 366 |
| | Eugen Keller | Head of FI/FX Researc | h | 329 |
| | Juliane Rack | FI/FX Strategy | | 1748 |
| | Sebastian Sachs | FI/FX Strategy | | 526 |
| Equities | Mustafa Ansary | Head of Equities | | 351 |
| | | Head of Equity Sales | | |
| Sales | Eugenia Buchmüller | | | 238 |
| | Hugues Jaouen | | | 4173 |
| | Alexander Kravkov | | | 4172 |
| | Jasmina Schul | | | 1766 |
| | Simon Weil | | | 4189 |

Trading Sven Knauer Head of Equity Trading 245 Kirsten Fleer 246 Sascha Friese 248 Stephan Schmelzle 247 **Thomas Seibert** 228 **Corporate Solutions** Dr. Karsten Iltgen Head of Corporate Solutions 510 Thomas Burkart 511 Christoph Hirth 513 Adrian Takacs 512

METZLER

Capital Markets



| Fixed Income (FI) | Sebastian Luther | Head of Fixed Income | 688 |
|-----------------------|--|---|---------------------------------|
| FI Sales | Minush Nori Silke Amelung Claudia Ruiu Gloria Traidl | Head of Fixed Income Sales | 689 289 683 280 |
| FI Trading/ALM | Sven Klein Bettina Koch Susanne Kraus Christian Bernhard Dirk Lagler | Head of ALM Head of Fixed Income Trading | 686 291 658 266 685 |
| Foreign Exchange (FX) | Özgur Atasever | Head of Foreign Exchange | 281 |
| FX Sales | Tobias Martin Thomas Rost Steffen Völker | Head of FX Sales & Trading FX Senior Advisor | 614 292 293 |
| FX Trading | Rainer Jäger Andreas Zellmann | | 276 610 |
| Currency Management | Dominik Müller | Head of Currency Management | 274 |
| CM Advisory | Achim Walde Jens Rotterdam Harwig Wild | Head of Advisory | 275 282 279 |
| CM Operations | Simon Wesch Christopher Haase Florian Konz | Head of Operations | 350 1617 1773 |
| | Sergii Piskun | Senior Quantitative Analyst | 237 |